
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 

Bartholomew Building Upper Conference Room 
110 N. Court St., Heppner, Oregon 

See Electronic Meeting Information on Page 2 
 

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments:  Individuals may address the Board on topics not on the agenda 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Approve Accounts Payable and Payroll Payables 
b. Minutes:  April 8th  
c. LPSCC (Local Public Safety Coordinating Council) Coordinator Contract 

5. Business Items 
a. North Morrow Vector Control District Update (Greg Barron, Manager) 
b. Request to approve appointment to the North Morrow Vector Control District 

Board (Greg Barron) 
c. Discussion:  Umatilla Police Department Request for Dispatching Services from 

Morrow County (Sheriff Ken Matlack) 
d. Morrow County Government Command Center Update 
e. Reopening Plan Criteria Benchmarks 
f. Public Utility Commission – Discussion Regarding Petition to Intervene (Justin 

Nelson, County Counsel) 
g. Census 2020 Update (Chair Lindsay) 
h. Budget Resolution No. R-2020-11 (Kate Knop, Finance Director) 
i. Agenda Building for June 17th Joint Meeting with Grant County at the OHV Park  

6. Department Reports - Written 
a. Community Development Department Monthly Report 
b. Planning Department Monthly Report 

7. Correspondence 
8. Commissioner Reports 
9. Signing of documents 
10. Adjournment 
 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc


 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about  
items listed on the agenda, please contact Darrell J. Green, County Administrator at (541) 676-
2529. 
 

Electronic Meeting Information 
 

Morrow County Board of Commissioners is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.  Join 
Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546 
PASSWORD:  97836 
 
Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only: 

• 1-346-248-7799, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-669-900-6833, Meeting ID:  541 676 2546#  
• 1-312-626-6799, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-929-436-2866, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-253-215-8782, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 
• 1-301-715-8592, Meeting ID:  541-676-2546# 

 
Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW 
 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546
https://zoom.us/u/abD3eWKYVW










































                     
        
 
  
 
 
June 10, 2020 
 
Dear Morrow County Board of Commissioners: 
 
It is a pleasure to update you on the happenings at North Morrow Vector Control District. 
 
North Morrow Vector Control District was established by the voters of the North end of Morrow County 
in May of 1978.  Its primary concern is to suppress the mosquito genera Culex which is our main disease 
transmitter.  Our secondary concern is the control of pestiferous biting Aedes mosquitoes.  In order to 
do this, we utilize a variety of control methods such as surveying our mosquito population, larvaciding, 
adulticiding, biological control, source reduction and public education. 
 
I have provided our district’s 2019 annual report (attached) which highlights our mosquito control 
activities at a local, state, regional and national level.  By reading our annual report you can appreciate 
the challenges of preforming our mosquito abatement activities and realize that even though we are a 
local Morrow County municipality our program is even more far reaching than local mosquito control.  
Besides being the manager of the district, I am also on the American Mosquito Control Association 
Board of Directors serving as the North Pacific Director. 
 
According to ORS 452.090 Filling vacancies. (1) A vacancy in an office of district trustee shall be filled by 
appointment by the county court. The appointee shall serve the balance of the unexpired term.  Today, I 
am requesting that long time North Morrow Vector Control District (NMVCD) Budget Committee 
member Pat Tolar be appointed to serve out the balance of retiring NMVCD Trustee Roger Trueax’s term 
on the Board, which will expire June 21, 2023. The NMVCD Board of Trustees approved Pat Tolar as a 
suitable replacement for the vacated Board position at our May 20th Board meeting. (See attached 
minutes and Pat Tolar’s letter of interest). 
 
Thank you for this opportunity to share this information with the Morrow County Board of 
Commissioners. 
  
Respectfully, 
Greg Barron, Manager 
P.O. Box 192 / 3 Marine Dr. 
Boardman, OR  97818 
gbarron@centurytel.net 
481-6082 
 

o r t h

 

C o n t r o l D i s t r i c t M o r r o w 

• 3 Marine Drive/ P.O. Box 192 • Boardman, Oregon  97818 • 541.481.6082 Voice 
541.481.6082 Fax (by request)  

Email:  gbarron@centurytel.net 
 

 

V e c t o r    

mailto:gbarron@centurytel.net
mailto:gbarron@centurytel.net


2019 ANNUAL REPORT 

North Morrow Vector Control District 
The Mosquito Season 

 
The year 2019 started out mild, weather 

wise, and it looked like we were going to 

have a repeat of our uneventful 2018 

winter weather…then came February. 

January had an average temperature of 36 

degrees and only 3 days of rain.  February 

was a different story.  It started snowing 

on the 4th and never really quit until mid-

March with average temperatures around 

25 degrees and as low as -1 degree.  On 

Tuesday the 22nd of March things started 

to warm up with a high temperature of 

70 degrees and with that winter was 

officially over.  We were pretty dry for 

the most part until February.  With the 

ground being so dry the snow melt got absorbed into the soil and never pooled up on the 

surface of the ground.  After that we continued to be dry with one or two rain events April 

through May.  The summer was relatively mild and dry.  We never saw rain again until 

September 20th where it got unseasonable cool for a few days then right back to normal.  

August was our hottest month, but fairly mild compared to other years.  We did have a couple 

of real scorchers as high as 111 degrees, but that was about it.  West Nile virus loved this 

weather and kicked into gear towards the end of July and continued to be problematic until 

mid-September.  We just kept on picking up WNv positive mosquitoes mostly in the Irrigon 

Area and then into the East Boardman area later in August and early September.  We increased 

our ULV Fogging activities sending three fogging trucks out at least twice weekly.  When the 

virus started to get head of us we called in our contingency contract with Vector Disease 

Control International (VDCI) a fixed wing aerial applicator.  We flew VDCI three times over 

the Irrigon and East Boardman areas affected by WNv.  With increased Hemp being grown in 

both the Irrigon and Boardman areas we had to get real creative with our ground and aerial 

adulticide spray blocks.  We basically had to treat all Hemp fields as organic.  We managed to 

get through the season with our second highest mosquito pool number ever at 70 WNv 

positive pools.  Because of our increased adulticide activities, we saw zero human, horse and 

bird transmission. 

 

 

One of many Hemp fields that we had to avoid while 

spaying with our ULV Fogging trucks and our aerial 

spray blocks. 



It’s a Bird, it’s a plane no it’s a DRONE! 
 

The new evolution of mosquito control has arrived here in Morrow County literally by drones.  

Three years ago in a North Morrow Vector Control District Board meeting the topic came up 

regarding drone use in mosquito control.  The manager of the District Greg Barron informed 

the Board that he had been looking hard at drone use in agriculture and wondered if it could be 

adapted to mosquito control.  As time went on, Greg and his Surveillance  

Supervisor Anita Baumgart attended the 

Hermiston Farm Fair which featured quite a 

few drone distributors and contractors.  In 

2018, Greg attended the American 

Mosquito Control Annual Meeting in 

Kansas City where he observed a whole 

session that was dedicated to drones and 

their use in mosquito surveillance and 

control.  After that meeting, the staff at 

North Morrow Vector Control District 

was bit by the drone bug.   

In the fall, Anita attended an introductory 

Drone Certification Class in Bend.  Anita 

found she had a natural ability to fly drones 

and her instructor even said so.  Our next step was to commit to the new drone technology 

and incorporate it into our mosquito control program here at North Morrow Vector Control 

District.  Greg crunched the numbers and Anita definitely knew we had a need for a drone in 

our everyday mosquito control activities.  She knew that an eye in the sky would provide better 

surveillance of the mosquito breeding sights in our District.  Greg knew that the District could 

save time and money by locating and mapping sources from the air and using pinpoint accuracy 

while making our chemical applications utilizing the drone. 

In January, Greg and Anita pitched the new drone program to the Board.  They told the Board 

that they had found a company, Leading Edge Technologies, Inc., who was on the for-front of 

drone technology in mosquito control. So, the District Board decided to dedicate $35,000 to 

the program.  The District purchased the Precision Vision software and two drones.  One 

drone, the workhorse, call a PV22 with four prop bladed arms and a 22 pound payload capacity 

and a surveillance drone called a Phantom 4.  Now, with the painful part done (spending the 

money) it was time to certify a pilot.  Anita took on the role.  She studied for her Federal 

Aviation Administration (FAA) Part 107 and Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) Aerial 

Public Applicators examinations passed both with ease. Next, the drones were ordered. In May, 

Chief Drone Pilot Anita Baumgart instructs Drone 

Assistant Intern Abel Rodelo how to switch out the 

batteries on the drone. 



Anita went to drone school with Bill Reynolds CEO 

of Leading Edge Technologies for a week.  Anita 

learned a lot and is quite an accomplished drone 

pilot…Bill even said so.  Now Anita will focus on 

completing her 50 hours of “fake” application time, 

utilizing “blanks”, so she can satisfy her Aerial Public 

Applicators requirements with the ODA in order to 

receive her certification. 

This summer North Morrow Vector Control 

District applied and was award a Special Districts 

Association of Oregon (SDAO) Internship Grant for 

$3,000.  This is a matching grant that will be used to 

hire an intern to serve as an assistant to Anita our 

drone pilot.  Abel Rodelo an Agriculture Business 

major at Oregon State University was hired by 

NMVCD as an intern to fulfill the role of drone pilot 

assistant and spotter.  This is a very important role.  

Abel provides an additional set of eyes for the drone 

pilot.  He also provides a level of security for the 

drone pilot who is concentrating on flying the drone, 

so nobody disturbs the drone pilot while she is flying the drone.   

Abel’s official duties include: 

• UAS Visual Observer 

• Assists the Pilot in Command (PIC) with maintenance on the drone 

• Assists the PIC with pre-flight checklist 

• Assist the PIC in identifying hazards 

• Perform assistance during sorties (switching out batteries and filling the product 

hopper) 

• Assist in developing public education materials relating to the drone activities 

• Learn to navigate and use data collection computer program/app utilized during product 

applications 

Abel was an adept pupil and helped advance our drone program with his eagerness to learn and 

perform his duties to the drone pilot and program with efficiency. The staff here at North 

Morrow Vector Control District will miss Abel when he leaves to return to school on 

September 12th. 

Anita and Greg are very enthusiastic and optimistic regarding the drone program and are 

looking forward to incorporating this “Killer” drone technology program next spring and into 

the 2020 mosquito season.  

This is an early morning larvicide application 

utilizing South County Helicopter out of 

Pendleton. 



West Nile Virus in Oregon 2019

Our district captured 70 West Nile positive mosquito pools during the 2019 season.  
There were nine human cases of WNV this year one in Deschutes County (out of state 

infection), three in Harney County, three in Malheur County and two in Baker County. There 

were eight WNV horse infections two in Harney County, two in Malheur County, one in Baker 

County, one in Union County, one in Umatilla County and one in Crook County.  There were 

85 mosquito pools that tested positive for WNV in Oregon, 70 in Morrow County, 7 in 

Umatilla County, 4 in Baker County and 4 in Malheur County.    

There were 885 human cases of WNV with 47 deaths during 2019 in the U.S. Arizona listed 

173 human cases that resulted in 17 deaths, California recorded 196 cases that resulted in 6 

deaths and Colorado listed 120 cases that resulted in 6 deaths. There were 581 neuroinvasive 

human cases and 304 non-neuroinvastive (fever) human cases in the U.S Interesting to note that 

there were 101 WNV viremic blood donors in the U.S. in 2019. 

 
 



Standards and Policies 
 
North Morrow Vector Control District was created 

in 1978 under provisions of chapter 452.  Oregon 

Revised Statutes (ORS) to provide a program for 

relief from mosquitoes in the Boardman and Irrigon 

areas of North Morrow County. 

Changes in the Statutes have substantially altered the 

definition of “Public Health Vectors” to include 

additional arthropods, rodents and coyotes since the 

formation of the district.  As the district was 

originally formed and funded for mosquito control 

the Board of Trustees have designated that mosquito 

control shall be the principle program of the district.  

However, the Board has established the policy that 

the district will provide to residents of the district, 

technical information regarding other vector pests 

and their control so as personnel, time and money 

permits. 

The District Board have established policy and 

guidelines and employed personnel to implement a comprehensive control program.  The 

program is reviewed annually for revisions to adjust to regulatory and ecological requirements 

or changing conditions. 

The District program is financed by a property tax levy.  A tax base for the district was 

established in 1978. 

North Morrow Vector Control District’s principle objective is to provide a means for 

preventing the transmission of Western Equine Encephalitis through the reduction of its 

primary vector, the mosquito Culex tarsalis. 

North Morrow Vector Control District supports management of vector populations when and 

where necessary by means of an integrated program designed to benefit or to have minimal 

adverse effects on people, domestic animals, wildlife and the environment.   This integrated pest 

management policy recognizes that vector populations cannot always be eliminated.  Often they 

must be suppressed to tolerable levels for the well-being of humans, domestic animals and 

wildlife, and that selection of scientifically sound suppression methods must be based upon 

consideration of what is ecologically and economically in the long-term interest of humankind. 

Josiah larviciding a mosquito producing 

source with Vectobac G before those little 

blood suckers hatch out!  



The following principles are to be followed: 

· Vector control measures should only be 

undertaken when there is adequate justification 

based upon surveillance data. 

The combination of methods for vector control 

should be chosen after careful consideration of the 

efficacy, health effects, ecological effects and cost 

versus benefits of the various options; including 

public education, legal action, natural and biological 

control, elimination of the breeding sources, and 

pesticide applications.   

· Vector breeding sources, whether natural or 

created by human activity, should be altered in such 

a manner as to cause the least undesirable impact 

on the environment. 

Pesticides and application methods should be used 

in the most efficient and least hazardous manner in 

accordance with all-applicable laws, regulations and 

available scientific data.  The registered label requirements for pesticide use should be followed.  

When choices are available among effective pesticides, those offering the least hazard to non-

target organisms should be used.  Pesticides should be chosen and used in a manner that will 

minimize the development of resistance in vector populations. 

 Personnel involved in the vector control program should be properly trained and supervised, 

certified in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, and should keep current with 

improvements in management techniques through continuing education and/or training 

programs. 

Much of the progress in the district program is due to the support, cooperation and assistance 

received from numerous individuals, firms and agencies and is greatly appreciated by the Board 

of Trustees and District Employees. 

 
Meeting the Public 

  

Educating the public about mosquitoes and mosquito control is vital to any mosquito abatement 

program. 

Checkout our website at: 

http://nmvcdmosquito.org, You can also find us on Facebook, so have a look and don’t forget to 

friend us! 

Josie is surveying for mosquito larva utilizing a 

process called “dipping”.  This will tell her if 

she needs to treat the source with a larvicide.  

http://nmvcdmosquito.org/


On June 6th we gave an all-day presentation to grades K-3rd during the Safety Rodeo at Sam 

Boardman Elementary. The kids are so excited to see us there with all of our mosquito control 

equipment, fish and mosquitoes. 

We participated in both the Boardman 4th of July and Irrigon Watermelon Festival parades.  

We posted WNV awareness ads in local newspapers on a monthly basis.  The reader boards in 

both communities are excellent ways to get the message out to the public in a timely manner.  

We also worked the Mosquito Control Booth at the Umatilla County Fair during the first week 

in August. 

Workshops and Conferences 
  

In early February, we attended the Special Districts 

of Oregon Association Conference in Sunriver.   

Greg attended the American Mosquito Control 

Association Annual Meeting in sunny and warm 

Orlando, Florida.  

In March, Anita and I attended a Northwest 

Mosquito and Vector Control Association 

(NWMVCA) Spring Workshop in Richland, 

Washington.   

The Oregon Mosquito and Vector Control 

Association meeting was held April 8th in Jackson 

County.  We held a one day tick surveillance 

workshop and business meeting.  This was a hands-

on workshop with plenty of time being spend afield 

collecting tick specimens for identification.   

On April 24th, Clarke Mosquito Control and 

Adapco conducted a “Truck Rodeo” at West 

Umatilla Mosquito Control District facilities and performed droplet analysis on our ULV 

Foggers.  

In May, I attended the American Mosquito Control Association Washington, D.C. Legislative 

Days.  Randy Gerard, Jimmy Lunders, Carma Barron and I visited with all five Oregon 

Congressional Representatives and both Oregon Senators.  As a result of our meeting the 

Oregon Health Authority will receive additional funding for WNV. 

The Northwest Mosquito and Vector Control Association meeting was held in Boise, Idaho 

during the month of October.  This two day event was very educational where we learned 

about product field trial results, GIS, WNV and drones in mosquito control.  Greg was 

awarded the Distinguished Service Award at the annual banquet. 

Carma is flagging for ticks at our Tick 

Taxonomy Workshop held in Jackson County, 

Oregon.  



Greg attended the AMCA Interim Board Meeting on November 13th, in Portland in preparation 

for our upcoming annual meeting in March 2020. 

Our Oregon Mosquito and Vector Control Association fall meeting was held in Portland, 

Oregon November 13th and 14th.  There was much discussion regarding the OMVCA being the 

host association for the upcoming AMCA meeting in Portland March 16th through the 20th, 

2020.  

NMVCD Receives Grant Funding 
 

At the beginning of the 2019 year we 

were awarded a $10,000 CDC/ELC 

/WNV grant.  The money was 

utilized to purchase items like EVS 

traps, BG Sentinel 2 traps, lab 

equipment, dry ice, batteries, wages, 

fuel and other expenses related to 

WNV surveillance. 

In June, our district was awarded a 

$3,000 internship grant from Special 

District’s Insurance Services of 

Oregon. We used the funding to 

help supplement field technician Abel 

Rodelo’s wages while performing his 

drone training internship activities 

(see article). 

In June, I applied for a Columbia 

River Enterprise Zone CREZ ll grant for the purpose of bringing more mosquito control 

awareness to the Irrigon community. As a result, we were awarded a $8,000 grant.  We will 

utilize the funds for public and school mosquito education materials and continue to produce 

video shorts to promote mosquito awareness in North Morrow County. We will also develop 

and produce humorous mosquito memes to post on Facebook. We will contract once again 

with Adriana Sanchez to develop mosquito awareness video shorts for the district. 

Mosquito Control 

The district’s comprehensive mosquito suppression program consists of surveys, larvaciding, 

adulticiding, biological control, source reduction and public information. 

Surveys are conducted to locate and provide data on all sites that produce or have the potential 

of producing mosquitoes.  Maps and records developed over the past years provide the basis 

Meeting with staff from the USFWS on the Federal Refuge. It is 

important to work closely with wildlife agencies to help us 

better understand each other’s role in regards to mosquito 

control on federal lands. 



for a systematic inspection program.  These records are constantly updated to reflect changing 

conditions. 

Larviciding provides the most 

effective and economical means of 

control.  Field applicators inspect 

known sources on a systematic basis 

treating infested sources with an 

appropriate control to prevent 

production of mosquitoes.  The data 

from daily field reports is evaluated 

and used to update source records 

for current operations and future 

planning via Sentinel GIS programs. 

Adulticiding generally occurs when 

adverse weather conditions, varied 

irrigation practices or migrations of adult mosquitoes from uncontrolled areas that prevent the 

level of control the larvacide program attempts to maintain.  Also, a mosquito-borne disease 

outbreak, like West Nile Virus, can trigger higher levels of adult control.  Adult mosquito 

control is a difficult, expensive practice that cannot always be applied when the need is greatest 

and is effective for a very short time, often less than 24 hours.  

Biological Control includes water management practices and the use of mosquito predators.  A 

site may be drained, water prevented from entering, filled, and deepened to support fish or the 

shoreline altered to prevent shallow areas.  The use of Gambusia affinis (mosquito fish) in areas 

of suitable habitat substantially reduce the amount of insecticides used for mosquito control.  

Many of the sites require restocking annually and frequently sufficient numbers of fish are not 

available early in the season due to reproduction factors in our climatic area.  The district 

attempts to maintain a source of Gambusia by establishing brood ponds free of trash fish 

varieties. Gambusia are only for aquaria use. 

Source Reduction also like Biological Control includes water management practices.  Educating 

the public of what is and what is not a mosquito breeding source greatly aids vector control 

activities.  Some mosquito breeding sources can be eliminated, but others can be manipulated 

as to reduce their production of mosquitoes without causing harm to an ecosystem.  Working 

with landowners, so they irrigate their property responsibly, thus reducing possible breeding 

sites of flood water mosquitoes. 

Information Programs to service clubs, organizations, school classes and news media are essential 

that individuals be aware and encouraged to assist in the reduction of mosquito production 

around the home, business and farm. 

Adult mosquito surveillance is very important to our mosquito 

control program.  Here Josie Q. is setting an EVS trap in one of 

our strategic locations.   



Fly Control: Fly problems develop 

from the improper handling of 

garbage, refuse or animal waste.  The 

district views fly production as a 

sanitation problem and the policy is 

to locate the production source and 

encourage the responsible party to 

eliminate the source and/or 

implement a suitable fly reduction 

program. 

Insecticides: Due to the diversity of 

sources, land use crop label 

requirements and environmental 

concerns a variety of insecticides are 

used.  The district does not use 

broad spectrum insecticides, only those that are more species selective.  While costs are 

higher, these insecticides leave natural predators more available for control purposes.  
Other Vertebrates and Arthropod Vectors:  District policy regarding other insect and vertebrate 

vectors in that most are pest problems created by an individual effecting their own premises 

and that public funds should not be used to control an individual’s pest problems.  As a service 

to residents of the area, district personnel does, so far as time permits, provide information and 

technical advice regarding control or prevention measures, or where they can find professional 

pest control services in the private sector.  The district does respond to requests by public 

agencies where pests on their properties pose a threat to the public.  District personnel have 

also conducted training and demonstration programs for employees of public agencies and 

private businesses in pest control. 

District Personnel: A full time manager is employed to plan and organize the work of field 

inspection and control operations, employ and direct district personnel, maintain financial and 

operational records and provide public information in accordance with district policies.  

Additional duties include maintenance and repair of equipment. 

During mosquito season qualified field technicians are employed to implement the mosquito 

abatement program.  Part-time help may be hired at the request of the district manager.  
 

THE STAFF 
Our staff for the 2019 mosquito season consisted of experienced veterans like Greg Barron, 

Manager.  Greg has spent 33 years with the district. Greg is the “jack of all and the master of 

many”.   

Anita is helping the kids during the Boardman Children’s Fair 

play toss the larvicide briquette into the bucket.  



Our other long time employee is Anita Baumgart who is the Surveillance Supervisor.  Anita has 

been with the district for 26 years.  Anita is the only employee allowed to operate the predator 

ATV.  Anita is very skillful at mosquito taxonomy and is our new drone pilot. This season we 

employed five seasonal technicians. 
Josie Fernandez returned to us for her fourth season as a mosquito technician. Josie worked in 

the Irrigon area while training Josie Sanchez to take over those duties.  Next, Josie Fernandez 

assisted Anita with mosquito taxonomy identifying, counting and pooling adult mosquitoes for 

disease testing. She is a dedicated hard worker. This will be Josie Fernandez last season.  

 

We got an unexpected surprise 

when Abel Rodelo came back 

for a third and last season.  

Abel is a seasoned pro and will 

definitely help with training, 

surveillance, mechanical work 

and mosquito control. Abel 

was responsible for Area 3 

which covers RDO and both 

State and Federal lands. Abel is 

studying Agriculture Business 

at Oregon State University. 

Abel and Josie Fernandez both 

assisted Anita while she was 

satisfying her “Fake” 

application hours with the 

drone.  Abel also completed 

an internship while working with us through Oregon State University.   

Josiah Barron came back for his third year as part of our mosquito surveillance team.  Josiah did 

an excellent job this season covering the Boardman area.  One thing about Josiah…you will 

never see him just standing around…he is definitely a “self-starter”.  He helped train Brandy 

Quesada-Hermosillo after she was hired mid-July. Josiah is currently studying Political Science at 

Pensacola Christian College in Florida. I will leave the door open for him if he comes back for a 

fourth season. 

Jocelin “Josie” Sanchez worked in the Irrigon area after Josie Fernandez was moved into the 

adult mosquito surveillance program to assist Anita with trapping, identification and pooling 

mosquitoes for disease testing.  Jocelin is currently studying Education at Oregon State 

University. 

Here is our mosquito control crew along with a couple of extra 

volunteers ready for action participating in our Independence Day 

Parade!  



Brandy Quesada-Hermosillo started working for us this season after passing her exams and 

obtaining her Oregon Public Applicators License in July. Brandy trained with Josiah. I am hopeful 

that Brandy will come back and work for us next year.  She is currently studying in the school 

of Public Health at Oregon State University.  

 

MAPS * CHARTS * GRAPHS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

 

            

Cx pips Cx tar

Ae 

increp Ae vex Ae dor Ae nigro Ae stict

Cq 

pertur

Cs 

inorn

An 

freeb

T O T AL: 1 9621 8064 291 0 5487 65 698 0 51 1 703 7556

201 9 NMVCD MO SQUIT O  T O T ALS

43%

17%

6%

12%

2%

4%
16%

2019

Cx pips

Cx tar

Ae increp

Ae vex

Ae dor

Ae nigro

Ae stict

Cq pertur

Cx pips Cx tar

Ae 

increp Ae vex Ae dor Ae nigro Ae stict

Cq 

pertur

Cs 

inorn

An 

freeb

T O T AL: 1 3097 3902 21 3 459 6 1 2 0 25 851 451

201 9 NMVCD Mosquito T otals (Excluding Castle Rock Farms)

69%

21%

1%

2%

5%
2% 2019

Cx pips

Cx tar

Ae increp

Ae vex

Ae dor

Ae nigro

Ae stict

Cq pertur



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cx pips Cx tar

201 7 241 55 7773

201 8 1 2648 3296

201 9 1 9621 91 91

24155

12648

19621

7773

3296

9191

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

2017 2018 2019

CX PIPIENS VS CX TARSALIS 3 YR COMPARE

Cx pips Cx tar



 

 

 

 

 
 

Cx pips Cx tar
Ae 

increp Ae vex Ae dor
Ae nigro

Cs 

inorna An freeb Other

T O T ALS: 221 62 2951 359 1 97 0 1 3 645 2632 49

201 7 CASTLE ROCK FARMS SPECIES PERCENTAGES

77%

10%

1%

1%
2% 9%

2017 

Cx pips

Cx tar

Ae increp

Ae vex

Ae dor

Ae nigro

Cs inorna

An freeb

Other

Cx pips Cx tar

Ae 

increp Ae vex Ae dor Ae stict Ae nigro

Cs 

inorna An freeb

T O T ALS: 7437 1 030 9 452 0 5 1 22 1 75 3287

201 8 CASTLE ROCK FARMS SPECIES PERCENTAGES

60%

8%

4%

26%
2018 

Cx pips

Cx tar

Ae increp

Ae vex

Ae dor

Ae stict

Ae nigro

Cs inorna

An freeb



 
 

 

 
 

Cx pips Cx tar

Ae 

increp Ae vex Ae dor Ae stict Ae nigro

Cs 

inorna An freeb

T O T ALS: 6524 41 62 2697 5028 59 0 686 852 71 05

201 9 CASTLE ROCK FARMS SPECIES PERCENTAGES

24%

15%

10%19%3%

3%

26%

2019

Cx pips

Cx tar

Ae increp

Ae vex

Ae dor

Ae stict

Ae nigro

Cs inorna

An freeb



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

M O NT H

M A T E R IA L  

A P P L IE D

R A T E  

A P P L IE D

L B S .O F  

M A T E R IA L

A C R E S  

A P P L IE D

L B S  O F  

AC T IVE  

IN G R E D IE N T

AP R IL VE C T O B AC  (B T I) 1 0/AC 1 685 1 68.5 47.1 8

MAY VE C T O B AC  (B T I) 1 0/AC 1 770 1 77 49.56

JU NE VE C T O B AC  (B T I) 1 0/AC 1 890 1 89 52.92

JU LY VE C T O B AC  (B T I) 1 0/AC 685 68.5 1 9.1 8

JU LY VE C T O MAX 8/AC 540 67.5 38.88

AU G U S T VE C T O MAX 8/AC 540 67.5 38.88

S E P T E MB E R VECTO MAX 8/AC 540 67.5 38.88

T O T AL: 5920 652 226.96

ODFW LARVACIDE APPLICAT IONS FOR 201 9

NO T E: ALL LARVACIDE APPLICAT IO NS WERE APPLIED BY  HELICO PT ER.

Cx pips. Cx tar.

Ae 

increp. Ae vex. Ae nigro. Ae dor.

Cq 

perturb Cs inorn. An freeb.

T O T ALS: 1 48 1 03 1 5 247 0 0 0 1 1 2

201 9 COYOTE SPRINGS SPECIES PERCENTAGES



 
 

2019 FEDERAL REFUGE SPECIES PERCENTAGES 

  
Cx 

pips. Cx tar. 
Ae 

increp. 
Ae 

vex. 
Ae 

nigro. 
Ae 

dor. 
Cq 

perturb 
Cs 

inorn. 
An 

freeb. 

TOTALS: 1068 1241 143 21 9 0 51 97 197 

 
 
 

 

 

 

MO NT H

MAT ERIAL 

APPLIED

RAT E 

APPLIED

LBS. O F 

MAT ERIAL

ACRES 

APPLIED

LBS O F 

ACT IVE 

ING REDIENT

AP R IL VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 40 4 1 .1 2

MAY VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 31 5 31 .5 8.82

JU NE VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 1 68 1 6.8 4.704

JU LY VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 1 67 1 6.7 4.676

AU G U S T VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 1 90 1 9 5.32

AU G U S T VE C T O MAX  F G 8/AC 40 5 2.88

S E P T E MB E R VE C T O B AC  G 1 0/AC 1 30 1 3 3.64

S E P T E MB E R VE C T O MAX  F G 8/AC 40 5 2.88

T O T AL : 1 090 1 1 1 27.52

 NOTE: APPLICATIONS WERE MADE FROM HELICOPTER AND GROUND CREW.

USFW LARVACIDE APPLICAT IONS FOR 201 9



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



District Statistics 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISTRICT  

274 square miles 

175,360 acres 

  

CITIES 

Boardman & Irrigon 

  

ESTIMATED 

POPULATION 

8,000 people 

  

OPERATING 

BUDGET 

FY 2019-20 

$991,808 

FY 2018-19 

$991,675 

FY 2017-18 

$791,101 

 

DISTRICT 

EMPLOYEES 

1 manager 

2019 earnings 

$82,800.08 

2018 earnings 

$79,426.44 

2017 earnings 

$77,113.44 

  

1 Surveillance Supervisor 

2019 earnings 

$63,999.96 

2018 earnings 

$56,250.00 

2017 earnings 

$51,249.96 

  

4 to 5 Field Technicians 

2019 earnings 

$48,731.25 

2018 earnings 

$42,207.50 

2017 earnings 

$36,111.96 

  

  

GROUND 

ADULTICIDING  

29,507 acres 2019 

 14,582 acres 2018 

42,324 acres 2017 

  

AERIAL 

ADULTICIDING 

10,425 acres 2019 

0 acres 2018 

2,389 acres 2017 

 

 GROUND 

LARVACIDING 

 447 acres 2019 

324 acres 2018 

605 acres 2017 

 

 AERIAL 

LARVACIDING 

  1,857 acres 2019 

 1,560 acres 2018 

2,177 acres 2017 

 

MOSQUITO FISH 

120 fish 2019 

125 fish 2018 

127 fish 2017 

 

  

  

MOSQUITO POOLS 

 919 pools 2019 

517 pools 2018 

1,100 pools 2017 

  

POSITIVE POOLS 

41 Irrigon 2019 

0 Irrigon 2018 

9 Irrigon 2017 

24 Boardman 2019 

0 Boardman 2018 

8 Boardman 2017 

1 RDO 2019 

0 RDO 2018 

35 RDO 2017 

5 USFWR 2019 

0 USFWR 2018 

0 USFWR 2017 

  

DEAD BIRDS TESTED  

1 Irrigon 2019 

0 Irrigon 2018 

1 Irrigon 2017 

2 Boardman 2019 

0 Boardman 2018 

0 Boardman 2017 

0 positive birds in 2019 

     0 positive birds 2018 

    0 positive birds 2017 

  

HUMAN POSITIVES 

0 Irrigon 2019 

0 Boardman 2019 

  

EQUINE POSITIVES 

0 Irrigon 2019 

0 Boardman 2019 

 

 















AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 1 of 2) 

Note: All other entities must sign contracts/agreements before they are presented to the Board of Commissioners (originals 
preferred).  Agendas are published each Friday afternoon, so requests must be received in the BOC Office by 1:00 p.m. on the 
Friday prior to the Board's Wednesday meeting.  Once this form is completed, including County Counsel, Finance and HR 
review/sign-off (if appropriate), then submit it to the Board of Commissioners Office.   

   Item # 

Please complete for each agenda item submitted for consideration by the Board of Commissioners
(See notations at bottom of form)

Phone Number (Ext):  
Requested Agenda Date: 

Presenter at BOC:

Department: 
Short Title of Agenda Item: 

This Item Involves: (Check all that apply for this meeting.) 
 Order or Resolution 
 Ordinance/Public Hearing: 
 1st Reading  2nd Reading 
 Public Comment Anticipated: 
Estimated Time:  

 Document Recording Required 
 Contract/Agreement 

Appointments 
Update on Project/Committee 
Consent Agenda Eligible
Discussion & Action 
Estimated Time: 

   Purchase Pre-Authorization
Other

  N/A Purchase Pre-Authorizations, Contracts & Agreements

Contractor/Entity: 
Contractor/Entity Address:  
Effective Dates – From: Through: 
Total Contract Amount:  Budget Line: 
Does the contract amount exceed $5,000?  Yes   No 

Reviewed By: 
Department Director Required for all BOC meetings 

DATE 

Administrator  Required for all BOC meetings 
DATE 

County Counsel 
DATE 

Finance Office 
DATE 

Human Resources 

*Required for all legal documents

*Required for all contracts; other
items as appropriate.
*If appropriate

DATE *Allow 1 week for review (submit to all simultaneously).  When each office has notified the submitting 
department of approval, then submit the request to the BOC for placement on the agenda.

 

(For BOC Use)

(No acronyms please)

Rev: 3/30/20



AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners 

(Page 2 of 2) 

Rev: 3/30/20 

1. ISSUES, BACKGROUND, DISCUSSION AND OPTIONS (IF ANY):

☐  * Attach additional background documentation as needed.

2. FISCAL IMPACT:

3. SUGGESTED ACTION(S)/MOTION(S):







830 E PRIMROSE, SUITE 200
SPRINGFIELD, MO 65807

Ph. 417-888-0645    Fax: 417-888-0657
www.tothassociates.com

Olson Rd 230kV Planned 
Transmission Line

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
HERMISTON, OREGON  OREGON 14, UMATILLA

O
:\O

re
go

n\
O

R
14

\G
IS

\m
xd

s_
pm

fs
\P

D
X9

0_
23

0k
V

_T
ra

ns
Li

ne
\2

30
kV

_L
an

do
w

ne
r_

M
ap

s_
Fo

r_
C

PC
N

_8
5x

11
.m

xd
 | 

dh
at

le
y 

| 2
/2

7/
20

20
 

THIS EXHIBIT IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES AND
SHOULD ONLY BE RELIED UPON AS SUCH

M7

BPA Transmission Centerlines

A T ansmission Centerlines

BPA Transmission Centerlines

BPA Transmission Centerlines

70'

650'

TALLMAN, TERRY K
& TALLMAN, CHERYL

Taxlot #3302

Map #:

Project:

Client:

Land Owner:

Easement Required
Preferred 230kV Centerline

TALLMAN, TERRY 1 of 5
Z

0 200 400100

Feet

Morrow County Property

Attachment A

lwright
Highlight

lwright
Highlight

lwright
Highlight



Attachment B - 1



Attachment B - 2



Attachment B - 3



Attachment B - 4



Attachment B - 5



Attachment B - 6



Attachment B - 7



Attachment B - 8



Attachment B - 9



Attachment B - 10



Attachment B - 11



Attachment B - 12



Attachment B - 13



Attachment B - 14



Attachm
ent B - 15



Attachm
ent B - 16



Attachm
ent B - 17



Attachment B - 18



Attachm
ent B - 19



Attachment B - 20



Attachment B - 21



Attachment B - 22



Attachment B - 23



Attachment B - 24



Attachment B - 25



Attachment B - 26



Attachment B - 27



Attachment B - 28



Attachment B - 29



Attachm
ent B - 30



Attachment B - 31



Attachm
ent B - 32



Attachment B - 33



Attachment B - 34



Attachment B - 35



Attachment B - 36



Attachment B - 37



Attachment B - 38



Attachment B - 39



Attachment B - 40



Attachment B - 41











�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$��%&' '�&

()*+,(-.)*+,(-	/011234 56789:	7;	<6=9>?	@=A6 6BCDC:A)*+,(-	E*F		GHI	J )*+,(-	E21(F		KLMNOPPM	QPQHNROH	HSSGQRMNOTQ	HQRNOUOHMNOSI	SUGKVPOH	HSITQIOQIHQ	MIW	IQHQXXONY ����	������Z	N[\]	̂_̀abc	\]	d	̀_ecb]cb̂ 	̀d]bf	Xbb	c[b	Oecbgedh	Sibgdc\ej	kl\̂bh\eb]	dê	SMR	mnopooJ/0qr(+-	s*1t2u4F		KLMNOPPM	QPQHNROH	HSSGQRMNOTQ	MXXI		 	Oe	c[b	Ldccbg	_v	KLMNOPPM	QPQHNROH	HSSGQRMNOTQw	Gbc\c\_e	v_g	Hbgc\v\̀dc\_e	_v	Glxh\̀	H_eybe\bèb	dê	Ib̀b]]\cz{	U\hb̂	xzN_||z	Vg__a]f}~�~u�	)2-(F		m�J���oJn 		 		�3�(3F		J�pJJJ �3�(3	/~�u(�F		���J��oJ� 		 Ov	z_l	b�ibg\bèb	ig_xhb|]	�\c[	c[b	=�;�6	�Q|d\h	Xbgy\̀b	P\]c�	h\ea]w	ihbd]b	cgz	_eb	_v	c[b]b�Xbgy\̀b	P\]c	G_ili	�]b|\p̀_h_e	̂bh\|\cb̂�					Xbgy\̀b	P\]c	G_ili	�̀_||d	̂bh\|\cb̂��s���E/ XQRTOHQ	POXN XH�QWKPQX_gc	Vz	Wdcb								X_gc	Vz	Nzib)2-(F ��Jm��oJ� �+-~*uF		SN�QR	HSRRQXGSIWQIHQ	�MH�Iw	XTHw	PNR�	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uPd]c	l]b̂	]bgy\̀b	h\]cf	)2-(F ���J��oJ� �+-~*uF		SRWQR	 			 �3�(3	E*F			J�pJJJ		 )(.+3~t-~*uSĝbg	I_f	J�pJJJw]\jeb̂	xz	H_||\]]\_ebg]	P\]d	Wf	�dĝ\bw	�_[e	Xdydjbw	dê	Xcbi[be	Vh__|{	WOXGSXONOSI�GQNONOSI	kRMINQWf	H_i\b]	]bgyb̂	bhb̀cg_e\̀dhhz	�����J�	dê	y\d	KfXf	Ld\h	c_	c[_]b	�\c[_lc	b|d\h	d̂ ĝb]]b]�����J�f	)2-(F J�����oJ� �+-~*uF		SN�QR	UOPOIk�GPQMWOIk	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uXNMUU�]	Wb̀hdgdc\_e	_v	X̀_cc	k\xxbe]{	U\hb̂	xz	Gd|bhd	R_�baf	)2-(F J�JJ��oJ� �+-~*uF		VROQU	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uKLMNOPPM�]	G_]cp�bdg\ej	Vg\bv{	U\hb̂	xz	N_||z	Mf	Vg__a]f	)2-(F J�JJ��oJ� �+-~*uF		VROQU	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uXNMUU�]	Vg\bv{	U\hb̂	xz	�_[deed	R\b|be]̀[eb\̂bgf		)2-(F J�JJ��oJ� �+-~*uF		NQXNOLSIY	�	Q��OVONX	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uXNMUU�]	Qggdcd	Q�[\x\c	�oo	dê	]liihb|becdh	Q�[\x\c	�o�{	U\hb̂	xz	�_[deed	R\b|be]̀[eb\̂bgf	�Xbb	dh]_	J�JJ�J�L_c\_e	v_g	Pbdyb	c_	Xliihb|bec	c[b	Rb̀_ĝ�f	)2-(F J�JJ��oJ� �+-~*uF		LSNOSI	 			 )(.+3~t-~*uXNMUU�]	L_c\_e	v_g	Pbdyb	c_	Xliihb|bec	c[b	Rb̀_ĝ{	U\hb̂	xz	�_[deed	R\b|be]̀[eb\̂bgw	�Qggdcd	Q�[\x\c	Xcdvv��oodê	]liihb|becdh	Q�[\x\c	Xcdvv��o�	̂_̀abcb̂	dê	i_]cb̂	]bidgdcbhz�f	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$��%&' ��&

()*+, -./-0/.1-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567GHI	JKLMNOP	JQRSMTU	9VWNXNL	HNUL	YMQZ	[SOSZXSM	-.\	.1-2	BSKMN]̂_	̀QaNSU	USMbSc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	Q]de	-./-0/-2_	()*+, -./f/.1-2 34*567,		HGg	Ih[i9	̀=jj9:J=>[9>̀ 9	 			 (+D4E5F*567GHI	JKLMNOP	JQRSMTU	MSUaQ]US	LQ	h<G8;HHG	9H9̀ 8j;̀	̀Qk]USdTU	SZKNd	OQMMSUaQ]cS]OS	MŜKMcN]̂	WSKMN]̂	YQMZKLlQ̀aNSU	USMbSc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	Q]de	Xe	GB[	-./f/-2_	()*+, -./m/.1-2 34*567,		=8B9j	n;H;>i/JH9G[;>i	 		 (+D4E5F*567h<G8;HHG	9H9̀ 8j;̀	̀Qk]USdTU	SZKNd	OQMMSUaQ]cS]OS	LQ	GHI	JKLMNOP	JQRSM	MŜKMcN]̂	kaOQZN]̂	WSKMN]̂l	jSOTcSdSOLMQ]NOKdde	-./m/-2_	̀QaNSU	USMbSc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	Q]de	Xe	GB[	-./f/-2_	o:SS	GHI	̀QMMSUaQ]cS]OS	-./f/-2	cQOPSLS]LMe	YQM	SdSOLMQ]NO	bSMUNQ]p_	()*+, -./-/.1-2 34*567,		̀=<<9>8:/j9:J=>:9	 			 (+D4E5F*567d̀KMS]OS	K]c	iSMKdcN]S	̀WKMdQTU	KccNLNQ]Kd	̀QZZS]LU_	jSOTc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	-./-/-2_	()*+, --/01/.1-2 34*567,		HGg	Ih[i9	jhH;>i/<9<=jG>[G	 			 (+D4E5F*567GHI	JKLMNOP	JQRSM	NUUkSU	jkdN]̂l	[;:J=:;8;=>q	<=8;=>	[9>;9[_	̀QaNSU	USMbSc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	--/01/-2	K]c	bNK	h_:_<KNd	LQ	LWQUS	RNLWQkL	SZKNd	KccMSUUSU	Q]	--/01/-2	RNLW	OQae	QY	--/.0/-2	<QLNQ]_	()*+, --/.m/.1-2 34*567,		=8B9j	̀=jj9:J=>[9>̀ 9	oG̀ r>\	:s̀ \	H8jp	 		 (+D4E5F*567hacKLSc	OQ]LKOL	N]YQMZKLNQ]	YQM	G]KOKaK	HK]c	̀QZaK]e	K]c	ZKNdSc	]QLNOSU	LQ	̀KdaN]S	KU	LWSNM	MSaMSUS]LKLNbS_		()*+, --/.m/.1-2 34*567,		<=8;=>	 			 (+D4E5F*567:8GnnTU	<QLNQ]	LQ	GcZNL	JMStnNdSc	8SULNZQ]e\	RNLW	UkaaQMLN]̂	GYYNcKbNLU	QY	iSQYYMSe	;WdS	K]c	:OQLL	iNXXS]Ul	nNdSc	XeIQWK]]K	<_	jNSZS]UOW]SNcSM_	()*+, --/.0/.1-2 34*567,		<=8;=>	 			 (+D4E5F*567JKMLNSUT	IQN]L	<QLNQ]	LQ	<QcNYe	JMQOSckMKd	:OWSckdSl	nNdSc	Xe	8QZZe	G_	CMQQPU_	̀QaNSU	USMbSc	SdSOLMQ]NOKdde	Xe	GB[Q]	--/.0/-2	K]c	bNK	h_:_	<KNd	LQ	LWQUS	RNLWQkL	SZKNd	KccMSUUSU	Q]	--/01/-2	RNLW	--/01/-2	jkdN]̂_	()*+, --/../.1-2 34*567,		̀j=::	9AG<	:8G89<9>8	 			 (+D4E5F*567h<G8;HHG	9H9̀ 8j;̀TU	̀MQUU	9VKZN]KLNQ]	:LKLSZS]Ll	nNdSc	Xe	8QZZe	G_	CMQQPU_	()*+, --/../.1-2 34*567,		̀j=::	9AG<	:8G89<9>8	 			 (+D4E5F*567:8GnnTU	̀MQUU	9VKZN]KLNQ]	:LKLSZS]Ll	nNdSc	Xe	IQWK]]K	jNSZS]UOW]SNcSM_	()*+, --/-m/.1-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567h<G8;HHGTU	jSade	8SULNZQ]e	K]c	9VWNXNLU	QY	HQkNU	:_	8QLW	oh9̀ /011t01.\	8QLWpl	nNdSc	Xe	̀KXdS	BkULQ]_	()*+, --/-1/.1-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567:8GnnTU	8SULNZQ]e	K]c	9VWNXNLU	QY	iSQYYMSe	;WdS	o:LKYY/-11t-10\	;WdSp	K]c	:OQLL	iNXXS]U	o:LKYY/.11t.1u\	iNXXS]UplnNdSc	Xe	IQWK]]K	jNSZS]UOW]SNcSM_	o:SS	KdUQ	9MMKLK	LQ	:LKYY/.11	K]c	UkaadSZS]LKd	SVWNXNL	:LKYY/.1v	YNdSc	-/--/-wp_	()*+, --/w/.1-2 34*567,		B9Gj;>i	 		



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$��%&' %�&

	 ()*+,-./-01234567	38	97:;52<=	6>?@AB	BACDAE	AFAGHC>I@GJFFK	H>	L62	M	JIE	7FAGHC@G	N@BH	JIE	D@J	OPQP	RJ@F	H>	HS>BA	T@HS>UH	AVJ@FJEECABBABP	97:;52<	BGSAEUFAE	MWXMWXWYMZ	[\]Y	:R	6@HK\	Q:N7R	;>>V\	97:;52<	;R	̂U@FE@I_\	LO6	:EECABB\	WYM95<9	Q4	Q7̀	Q:N7R̀	3;	[a]YM	5b	E@JF	@I	IAAEAE	G>IHJGH	:9c	JH	?UGPSAJC@I_BdBHJHAP>CPUB	>C	eY]f]agfZZag	NJThUE_A\	L3i7;̀	L:4;56j		(k/)l MYXM]XWYMZ m+/-01l		3497;	63;;7QL32c7267	n:6j2̀	Qo6̀	N4;p	 		 ()*+,-./-01;AHUCIAE	VJ@F	JEECABBAE	H>	:IJGJ?J	NJIE	6>P̀	QJI	h>BÀ	6:	VJCqAE	r;AHUCI	H>	QAIEAC̀	4AV?>CJC@FK	:TJK̀	OIJsFA	H>8>CTJCEr	(k/)l MYXMYXWYMZ m+/-01l		3497;	63;;7QL32c7267	n:6j2̀	Qo6̀	N4;p	 		 ()*+,-./-01;AHUCIAE	VJ@F	JEECABBAE	H>	:IJGJ?J	NJIE	6>P̀	VJCqAE	r;AHUCI	H>	QAIEAC̀	2>H	cAF@DACJsFA	JB	:EECABBAÈ	OIJsFA	H>8>CTJCErP	nG>?K	>b	L96	VAV>pP	(k/)l [XW[XWYMZ m+/-01l		3497;	63;;7QL32c7267	n:6j2̀	Qo6̀	N4;p	 		 ()*+,-./-01;AHUCIAE	?@AGA	>b	VJ@F	JEECABBAE	H>	:IJGJ?J	NJIE	6>	NN6	nG>?K	>b	LUsF@G	6>VVAIH	9AJC@_	2>H@GAp̀	VJCqAE	;AHUCIH>	QAIEAC̀	2>H	cAF@DACJsFA	JB	:EECABBAE=	OIJsFA	H>	8>CTJCEP	n:9c	CAVJ@FAE	G>?K	>b	L96	RAV>	JIE	LC>HAGH@DA	3CEACH>	IAT	JEECABB	@I	QJI	h>BÀ	6:	[XW[XMZpP	(k/)l [XWaXWYMZ m+/-01l		3497;	85N52<XLN7:c52<	 			 ()*+,-./-01OR:45NN:tB	;AuUABH	b>C	9UEEFA	:GGABB=	8@FAE	sK	4>VVK	:P	̂C>>qBP	(k/)l [XWZXWYMZ m+/-01l		L;347645o7	3;c7;	 			 v,w),	x0l			MZf]eg		 ()*+,-./-01LC>HAGH@DA	3CEAC	2>P	MZf]eg̀	B@_IAE	sK	LJHC@Gq	L>TAC̀	:EV@I@BHCJH@DA	NJT	hUE_A=	c5QL3Q54532\	R34532	83;L;347645o7	3;c7;	<;:247cP	6>?@AB	BACDAE	AFAGHC>I@GJFFK	[XWZXMZ	JIE	D@J	OPQP	RJ@F	H>	HS>BA	T@HS>UH	AVJ@FJEECABBAB	[XWaXMZP		(k/)l [XWZXWYMZ m+/-01l		N:i	hOc<7	;ON52<XR7R3;:2c:	 			 ()*+,-./-01:Nh	LJHC@Gq	L>TAC	@BBUAB	LCASAJC@I_	6>IbACAIGA	RAV>CJIEUV=	2>H@GA	>b	6>IHABHAE	6JBA	;@_SHB	?UCBUJIH	H>	3;QMg]PyM]	JHHJGSAEP	6>?@AB	BACDAE	AFAGHC>I@GJFFK	[XWZXMZ	JIE	D@J	OPQP	RJ@F	H>	HS>BA	T@HS>UH	AVJ@F	JEECABBAB	[XWaXMZP	(k/)l [XWWXWYMZ m+/-01l		R34532	 		 ()*+,-./-01OR:45NN:tB	R>H@>I	b>C	<AIACJF	LC>HAGH@DA	3CEAC=	RJEA	>CJFFK	JH	[XWWXMZ	?CASAJC@I_	G>IbACAIGAP	(k/)l [XM[XWYMZ m+/-01l		63RR724QX;7QL32Q7	 			 ()*+,-./-016FJCAIGA	JIE	<ACJFE@IA	6SJCF>tB	6>VVAIHBP	;AGtE	AFAGHC>I@GJFFK	[XM[XMZP	(k/)l [XMZXWYMZ m+/-01l		3497;	85N52<XLN7:c52<	 			 ()*+,-./-014SA	9ACV@BH>I	9ACJFEtB	:bb@EJD@H	>b	LUsF@GJH@>I	>b	2>H@GA	>b	[XWWXMZ	LUsF@G	6>VVAIH	9AJC@I_	?UsF@BSAE	>I	[XaXMZJIE	[XMaXMZP	8@FAE	sK	cJKFA	QH@IB>IP	(k/)l [XZXWYMZ m+/-01l		63287;7267	 		 ()*+,-./-01234567	38	L;797:;52<	63287;7267	@VVAE@JHAFK	b>FF>T@I_	LÔ N56	63RR724	97:;52<	BGSAEUFAE	[XWWXWYMZZ\YY	LR	nQAA	LUsF@G	6>VVAIH	9AJC@I_	I>H@GA	nG>Vs@IAE	I>H@GAp	b>C	AFAGHC>I@G	DACB@>IpP	6@HK\	97;R5Q432	̂U@FE@I_\OR:45NN:	7N764;56	633L7;:45o7	:EECABB\	aeY	i	7NR	:o7̀	97;R5Q432̀	3;	;A?>CHAC\	c5<54:N	NJT	hUE_A\L3i7;̀	L:4;56j	(k/)l [XZXWYMZ m+/-01l		LÔ N56	63RR724	97:;52<	 			 ()*+,-./-01



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$��%&' &�&

()*+(,-+(.�����	"����
���/�������	/	�
	0���
�	/����������1�	2�������
�	2�1����	�����������
�	3	��	45���	���
������4���
��/�
��	���
���
1���� 	���	�
	�
	�
	������
�	"����	
�	6������7/�����	
������	�
������
�
8*9	:;<*	=;,>:/���������������
���
1?
@��	����
���1���	�
���������	/�����	A���B��	����	C������ DEF	F;=*	GHH*::;9;=;<IGJKLM	)MNJMOP	KO	MQRSTNUMVWP	SX	OMQRSOMJ	WKTSMY	DEF	ZSUMX-	HUS[\	W]M	̂+MW	GJKLM	)MNJMÔS_ǸM	WK	̀MW	N	ZOMM	JKYVUKNJ	KZ	W]M	OMNJMO	ZOK_GJKLM-

abcdef	bg	hijkde	ebllfac	mfnodap	q	hofmfnodap	ebagfofaefr	estuvw	wvxyvz	v{v|}xs~u|�{{�	}s	zs|�v}	hea	��d~}vxvw}vz	|s�~}uvw	�~z	|u}uvw�	q	f{v|}xu|	kuw	������r	�u�	i���	l�u{	}s	���v|}vz	txstvx}�	s�~vxw	q	}�swv	�u}�s�}	v��u{�zzxvwwvw	�������	as}u|v	�{ws	}s	t��{uw�	u~	mvx�uw}s~	mvx�{z	������	q	��������	hijkde	ebllfac	mfnodapw|�vz�{vz	���������	����	hl	hofmfnodap	ebagfofaef	u��vzu�}v{�	�s{{s�u~�	eu}��	mfold�cba	j�u{zu~��ilncdkkn	fkfecode	ebbhfoncd�f	nzzxvww�	���	�	fkl	n�f�	mfold�cba�	bo	ovtsx}vx�	�dpdcnk	k��	��z�v�hb�fo�	hncode�		�����  �������� ¡¢�£¤¥�		cf�cdlba¦	q	f§mdjdc�	 			 ��̈¢©£ª�£¤¥ilncdkkn	fkfecode	ebbhfoncd�f«w	cvw}u�s~�	s�	ks�uw	��	cs}�	¬ife��������	cs}�®	�~z	os�vx}	f|�v~xszv¬ife�������®�	f|�v~xszv®r	gu{vz	��	cs���	jxss�w�	m�xz	|st�	�u}�	e�	xv|«z	 ��̄ ����	f°�u�u}	��̄ 	uw	|s~�uzv~}u�{�~z	uw	{s|�}vz	u~	{s|�vz	|��u~v}�	v~y�	~s�	 ���	�����  �������� ¡¢�£¤¥�		dadcdnk	¬nhhkdencdba�	eblhkndac�	hfcdcdba®	 			 ��̈¢©£ª�£¤¥d~	}�v	l�}}vx	s�	ilncdkkn	fkfecode	ebbhfoncd�f�	hv}u}us~	�sx	evx}u�u|�}us~	s�	h��{u|	es~yv~uv~|v	�~z	av|vwwu}�rgu{vz	��	cs���	jxss�w�		



September 29, 2016, PCN 1 

In June 2015 Umatilla Electric Cooperative’s representative, Mike Priest, contacted us with 

UEC’s proposal which was to replace existing transmission poles on our property with larger & 

taller poles, adding 3 more transmission lines, and moving them 5 more feet onto our property.  

Mr. Priest later returned with an offer of $900 and a contract wanting, which we understood to 

be, a total of 25 feet of easement along the west side of our property. We did not agree 

because he told us the neighbors on each side of us had 2 lots each and were getting $500 per 

lot for a total of $1000 each.  However, we questioned this because our neighbors’ 2 lots are 

much smaller than our1 lot. They each have about 200 feet along the easement and we have 

about 700 feet along the easement. We questioned why UEC was paying per lot instead of 

linear feet. They just said that is how they decided to do it. 

Through their subsequent visits we asked UEC to mark the placement of the new poles, mark 

the existing easement, & mark the end of the new easement line. The marks showed the new 

poles would actually be almost 10 feet more onto our property instead of 5 feet. They actually 

want a total of 25 feet easement from the new poles which they didn’t make clear to us from 

the first.  Mr. Priest brought Josh Lankford a couple of times to explain but we could not come 

to an agreement. 

The existing easement already runs through a corner of our house and our concern is that the 

new easement will add almost 10 more feet through our house.  The transmission lines will 

then be over a larger part of our house and we wonder about our safety. 

We also contacted Umatilla County Assessor’s office and they came and reviewed our property. 

They informed us that the lines will lower our property value though they won’t know how 

much until the lines are moved. 

In reading the contract we realized we are giving up control of a large amount of our property 

for a small amount of money, our property value will go down, we still have to pay the property 

taxes on the easement, maintain the property, and after we sign the contract we have no 

control over what UEC can do with our property in the future. 

Clarence & Geraldine Charlo 

81999 Lind Rd Umatilla, OR 97882 

541-922-3131 

beebcharlo@Yahoo.com                                              

 



ORDER NO.

ENTERED MAR 2 1 2017

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION

OF OREGON

PCN1

In the Matter of
ORDER

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE,

Petition for Certification of Public
Convenience and Necessity.

DISPOSITION: PETITION GRANTED

I. INTRODUCTION

In this order, we grant the petition filed by Umatilla Electric Cooperative (Umatilla) for a
certificate of public convenience and necessity as required for the construction of a five
mile overhead transmission line from a breaker in the McNary Substation, owned by the

Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), to Umatilla's existing Hermiston Butte
Substation.

II. BACKGROUND

Umatilla provides electric service to its Oregon members in Morrow, Umatilla, Union,

and Wallowa counties. Umatilla s service territory is located west ofBoardman in
Morrow County and covers much ofUmatilla County, surrounding the cities of

Hermiston and Pendleton and into the Blue Mountains.

As a consumer-owned utility, Umatilla is not subject to our jurisdiction with regard to its

rates, service, and financial matters. However, under ORS 758.015, Umatilla is required

to obtain from this Commission a certificate of public convenience and necessity (CPCN)
in order to condemn property for purposes of building a transmission line.

The proposed 115 kV transmission line would run approximately five miles from BPA's

McNary Substation to Umatilla's Hermiston Butte Substation. It would become the main

feed to the Hemiiston Butte Substation and provide backup to the existing feed from the
McNary Substation into the Hermiston area. The transmission line is needed to

adequately provide service to existing and new loads in the City ofHermiston and
Umatilla's surrounding service territory.

On September 22, 2016, we held a public comment hearing and prehearing conference in
this matter in Hermiston, Oregon. Umatilla and the Commission Staff made

presentations at the hearing and answered questions. No petitions to intervene have been



ORDER NO.

filed and no members of the public participated in the prehearing conference. However,

we have received some written comments from interested persons.

Umatilla and Staff filed testimony that was received at a hearing on December 12, 2016.

The matter was submitted with the filing of briefs by Staff and Umatilla on January 11,
2016. There are no contested issues of fact and law. Staff supports Umatilla's

application.

m. DISCUSSION

A. Legal Standard

Upon receipt of the petition, ORS 758.015(2) requires this Commission to undertake an
"investigation to determine the necessity, safety, practicability and justification in the
public interest for the proposed transmission line." In addition, OAR 860-025-0030(2)

requires us to determine whether the proposed transmission line is compatible with land

use regulations.

1. ORS 758.015(2)

In Order No. 11-366, we interpreted the statutory phrase "necessity, safety, practicability

and justification m the public interest of the proposed transmission line." Construing the
phrase in the context of the laws and policies governing the condemnation of private

property, we concluded that the statute required use to make separate determinations on

the necessity, safety, practicability, and justification of the proposed transmission line,

and must consider the "public interest" when addressing each of these requirements.

Furthermore, because we are acting in a legislative capacity making these public interest

determinations, we concluded that we must focus on the benefits and costs to all

Oregonians. Thus, although the interests of the petitioning entity must be considered,
we do not require a specialized showing of benefits to these customers to issue a CPCN.

With regard to the specific meaning of necessity, safety, practicability and justification
of a project, we relied on the plain, natural, and ordinary meanings of these terms. To

establish the necessity of a project, we concluded that the petitioner must demonstrate

that Oregonians will forego something desirable and useful without it. To establish the
safety of a project, we held that a petitioner must show that the project will be
constructed, operated, and maintained in a manner that protects the public from danger.

To establish the practicabiiity of the project, the petitioner must show the project is
feasible and will be effectively and efficiently constructed. Finally, to show that a project
is justified, the petitioner must show sufficient reason for the project to be built.

' In the Matter ofPaci/iCorp. dba Pacific Power, Docket No. UM 1495, Order No. 11-366 (Sept 22,2011).
2 Id. at 3.

3 Id. at 4.
4 Id.

2



ORDER NO.

2. OAR 860-025-0030(2)

In addition to the statutory criteria discussed above, OAR 860-025-0030 requires a
petitioner to show that the proposed transmission project complies with Oregon s

Statewide Planning Goals and is compatible with the acknowledged comprehensive plans
and land use regulations of each local government where the project is to be located. The

rule allows the petitioner to prove compatibility by showing either (1) it already has
received and use permits from local planning authorities; (2) the project does not require
land use permits; (3) the project can be approved by the local authorities if the petitioner
follows the proper procedures. The rule also allows us to make direct findings of

compatibility with Statewide Planning Goals,

B. Necessity of Proposed Transmission Line

1. Position of the Parties

Umatllla and Staff agree that the new line is necessary to provide reliable and safe service

to existing and new loads in the City ofHermiston and the surrounding service territory
and for the continued public health, safety, and economic welfare ofUmatilla's members.

The cooperative states that it is experiencing rapid growth and is expanding, replacing,
and adding infrastructure. Staff agrees that Umatilla has experienced rapid growth over

the last five years, with continued growth forecast, and notes that outages on the system

have increased in severity.

The parties also agree that an upgrade to the existing line would not be as effective as

development of the proposed line with respect to reliability and would be more
expensive. The area is currently served by a 115kV line owned by Umatilla and sourced

from BPA's McNary Substation. The existing line has limited capacity and limited
reliability and has resulted in outages. Umatilla looked into upgrading the existing line
but determined that upgrades would be an inferior choice.

The parties also note the benefits of the new line. Umatilla contends the new line will

benefit Oregonians directly and indirectly by supporting economic development, jobs,
and the tax base. Staff notes that a neighboring utility, Hermiston Energy Services, also

will benefit through increased reliability.

Z Commission Resolution

We conclude that Umatilla has established the necessity of the proposed line. Umatilla
has shown that it is experiencing rapid growth. The existing line has limited capacity and
limited reliability, resulting in outages. Upgrading the existing line would be an inferior
choice.



ORDER NO.

C. Safety of Proposed Transmission Line

L Position of the Parties

Umatilla and Staff contend that the project will be executed in a manner that protects the
public from danger and is therefore safe. Umatilla states that safety is a priority for the

cooperative in its operation and maintenance of its system, and it has substantial
experience constructing, operating and maintaining transmission lines in a safe, efficient

manner. Umatilla explains that the proposed line will be constructed, operated, and
maintained to meet or exceed all National Electric Safety Code standards, as well as all

applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Moreover, Umatilla

adds that it designs and maintains all of its electrical facilities in confonnance with State

of Oregon and United States Department of Agriculture service standards.

Staff is satisfied that Umatilla will comply with applicable standards for construction,
operation, and maintenance of the transmission line. Staff responds to concerns from
land owners which it fmds are not relevant or have been fully addressed by the project

design. Staff investigated potential environmental harm and exposure to electromagnetic

fields. Staff found minimal environmental impacts and exposures well below the
applicable standard.

2. Commission Resolution

We find that Umatilla has demonstrated that the proposed transmission line will be

constructed, operated, and maintained in a manner that protects the public from danger.
The company comtnits to meet or exceed all applicable safety standards and rules. These

standards and rules ensure that the line is constructed, operated, and maintained in a

manner that protects the public.

D. Practicability

7. Position of Parties

Umatilla and Staff contend that the proposed transmission line is practical. Umatilla
notes that the proposed line will use an existing transmission corridor and take a

relatively straight route between the McNary Substation and the Hermiston Butte
Substation. Any alternate route would require new easements, the potential

condemnation of more private property, and potential impacts to resource lands, such as
agricultural parcels.

Staff describes Umatilla's planning process and compares the estimated cost of the

proposed line to the costs of the alternatives which are more expensive. Staff notes that

due to the significant growth forecast for the service territory, the rate impact of the

project on the utility's customers is not significant. Umatilla has been granted

5 OAR 860, Division 024 (Safety Standards).



ORDER NO. 17 1

preliminary approval for financing the project through the Department of Agriculture,

Rural Utilities Service (RUS), which requires a showing that the project is justified.

Given the number of landowners involved, Staff finds it reasonable to assume that

Umatilla would have to resort to condemnation regardless of the route chosen. Thus, the
project is not practicable without a CPCN because the cooperative otherwise would be

unable to initiate the condemnation proceedings to acquire the necessary land or interests

in land.

2. Commission Resolution

We find that Umatilla has established that the proposed transmission line is feasible and
will be effectively and efficiently constructed. Umatilla has the experience and resources

necessary to effectively and efficiently complete the project. The proposed line is the
most cost-effective solution to the utility's need for new transmission into its Hermiston

Butte Substation.

E. Justification

1. Position of Parties

Both Umadlla and Staff agree that the proposed transmission line is justified. In terms of
benefits, Umatilla anticipates the proposed line will help meet its obligation to provide
sale and reliable service to its customers. Umatilla states that reliability is essential,
because the load center to be served has several critical loads, including hospital and

medical facilities, large merchandise outlets, and industrial processes.

In terms of costs, Umatilla reports that the cost of the line is estimated to be $5.74

million. The average impact on a residential member's bill is $0.37 per month.

Umatilla adds that it plans to receive financing for the line from RUS. As part of
receiving RUS financing Umatilla must demonstrate that the line is justified, and an
environmental analysis must be performed.

Staff did not engage in a traditional cost/benefit study because most of the benefits of the
line, including improved reliability, reduced outages, flexibility in serving load, and
increased load serving capabilities are not readily quantifiable. To assess justification,
Staff examined the alternate routes and the upgrade option and found the project to be

justified by comparison. Staff also considered the impact to customers and businesses

and found that the improved reliability benefits all affected persons.

2. Commission Resolution

Based on Staffs independent analysis, we find that Umatilla has shown sufficient reason

for the proposed transmission line to be built. We agree that many of the economic

benefits of the line are not readily quantifiable, but they are tangible and cannot be



ORDER NO.

achieved more efficiently or cheaply. We make this determination to facilitate Umatilla's

use of condemnation. Because we have no rate-makmg jurisdiction over Umatilla, our

finding cannot be used to justify Umatilla's recovery of its related costs. However, as
noted by Staff, as a municipal utility, Umatilla can be presumed to act in the best interests

of its customers.

F. Compatibility with Land Use Regulations

7. Position of Parties

At the outset, Umatilla states its willingness to work with all landowners to avoid the
need for condemnation (and the need for this proceeding). However, if condemnation is

required, the cooperative faces a timing issue — it cannot apply for final land use approval

from the county until it has a property interest in the land on which the line will be
constructed - and it needs condemnation to acquire that property interest.

Umatilla states that it has worked with local land use authorities to confirm that the line is
a permissible use along the route both within and without the Umatilla County/City
Urban Growth Areas and in the City ofHermiston. In the case of the county, the

transmission line would be a conditional use, such that the county may place conditions
on its approval to address any compatibility issues.

Regarding the Statewide Planning Goals, Umatilla separately discusses the application of
each of the relevant goals to its application.

Goal No. 1 is "Citizen Involvement." Umatilla notes that there is the

opportunity for citizen mvolvement in this proceeding as well as m the local

permitting process.

Goal No. 2 is "Land Use Planning and Exceptions." Consistency of the

transmission line with the county comprehensive plan is a requirement for the

conditional use permit that Umatilla will obtain from the county.

Goal No. 3 is "Agricultural Lands." Umatilla states that the proposed route

avoids all relevant lands.

Goal No. 5 is "Open Spaces, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Natural

Resources." Umatilla states that the proposed line does not pass through any

such designated areas.

Goal No. 6 is "Air, Water, and Land Resources." Umatilla states it will obtain

permits for applicable federal and state environmental standards, including air
and water quality standards. The construction of the line will be in

accordance with all applicable statutes, regulations, and standards.



ORDER NO. I ^? 111

Goal No. 8 is "Recreational Needs." Umatilla states that the transmission line

will have no material impact on recreational opportunities in and around the

area to be developed.

Goal No. 9 is "Economy of the State." Umatilla cites the improved

transmission reliability resulting from the project that will support future load
growth and economic development.

Goal No. 13 is "Energy Conservation." Umatilla cites the efficiency of
building the straight—and therefore short—line in an existing corridor as

promoting energy conservation. The shorter the line, the lower the line losses.

Staff likewise investigated the plan for the project in terms of local and statewide
planning criteria. With regard to local planning requirements. Staff relied on letters from

the City ofHemiiston's Planning Department and from the Umatilla County Department
of Land Use Planning. In its letter, the City ofHermiston noted that the route passes

through two areas of the city zoned for power transmission lines so that no land use

approval is required. In its letter, Umatilla County indicates that the line can be approved

under a conditional use permit in compliance with land use regulations, once the utility

has acquired the subject property.

Staff also works its way through each of the Statewide Planning Goals addressed by
Umatilla in its showing and independently agrees that the project is compatible with the
particular goal.

2. Commission Resolution

We find that Umatilla has established, and Staff has confirmed, that the proposed project
is compatible with statewide and local land use regulations and goals.

IV. PUBLIC CONCERNS

Although no person intervened in this proceeding, we did receive comments or

expressions of concerns regarding the project from members of the public. To the extent
those concerns relate to the adequacy of the payments to be made by Umatilla to

landowners in the condemnation process, those concerns are outside of our jurisdiction.

In its investigation. Staff reviewed concerns regarding the location of the line in relation

to existing housing and found that the placement of the line sufficiently addresses the
concerns.

V. CONCLUSION

We approve Umatilla's petition. We find that Umatilla has met the legal requirements
under ORS 758.015 and OAR 860-025-0030(2) for granting a certificate of public
convenience and necessity for the proposed line.



ORDER NO.

VL ORDER

IT IS ORDERED that Umatilla Electric Cooperative is granted a Certificate of Public
Convenience and Necessity to construct a five mile overhead transmission line from the
Bonneville Power Administration's McNary Substation to Umatilla Electric
Cooperative's Hermiston Butte Substation.

Made, entered, and effective
MAR 2 1 2017

J)-^
Lisa D. Hardie

Chair

€iK:'^

^

John Savage
Commissioner

Stephen M. Bloom
Commissioner

A party may request rehearing or reconsideration of this order under ORS 756.561. A

request for rehearing or reconsideration must be filed with the Commission withm 60 days
of the date of service of this order. The request must comply with the requirements in

OAR 860-001-0720. A copy of the request must also be served on each party to the

proceedings as provided in OAR 860-001-0180(2). A party may appeal this order by filing
a petition for review with the Court of Appeals in compliance with ORS 183.480 through
183.484.



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%��� %�&

'()*+',-()*+',	./00123 456789	6:	;5<8=>	?<@5 5ABCB9@()*+',	D)E		FGH	I ()*+',	D10'E		JFKLHMNLOPQ	RSLPLST	UVWKQ	GOKSLNLGWSLVH	VN	FRUPLGGVHXOHLOHGO	WHQ	HOGOJJLST ����	������Y	SZ[\	]̂ _̀ab	[\	c	_̂dba\ba]	_c\ae	Jaa	bZa	Ldbafdcg	Vhafcb[di	Mj[]ag[da\	cd]	VWK	klmnmmo./pq'*,	r)0s1t3E		JFKLHMNLOPQ	RSLPLST	UVWKQ		 	Ld	bZa	ucbbaf	̂v	JFKLHMNLOPQ	RSLPLST	UVWKQw	Fab[b[̂d	v̂f	Gafb[v[_cb[̂d	̂v	Fjxg[_	Ĝ dyad[ad_a	cd]	Ha_a\\[bze	N[ga]	xz	ucbbZa{QcZg\bf̂|e	Jafya]	b̂	Oga_bf[_	P[\be}~�~t�	(1,'E		om�o���mok 		 		�2�'2E		o�nm�l �2�'2	.~�t'�E		I�k��mo� 		 Lv	ẑj	a�haf[ad_a	hf̂xga|\	{[bZ	bZa	<�:�5	�O|c[g	Jafy[_a	P[\b�	g[d̀\w	hgac\a	bfz	̂da	̂v	bZa\a�Jafy[_a	P[\b	F̂hjh	�\a|[n_̂ĝd	]ag[|[ba]�					Jafy[_a	P[\b	F̂hjh	�_̂||c	]ag[|[ba]��r���D. JOKXLGO	PLJS JG�OQRPOĴ fb	Uz	Qcba								Ĵ fb	Uz	Szha(1,'E I�oo��mo� �*,~)tE		VS�OK	GVKKOJFVHQOHGO	�WG�Hw	JXGw	PSK�	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tPc\b	R\a]	Jafy[_a	P[\be	(1,'E I�k��mo� �*,~)tE		VKQOK	 			 �2�'2	D)E			o�nm�l		 ('-*2~s,~)tVf]af	Ĥ e	o�nm�lw	\[ida]	xz	Ĥ gcd	û \afw	GZ[av	W]|[d[\bfcb[ya	Pc{	�j]ia�	QLJFVJLSLVH�	FOSLSLVH	QLJuLJJOQ�LS�VRS	FKO�RQLGO�	QVG�OS	GPVJOQe	Ĝ h[a\	\afya]	̂d	I�k�o�e		(1,'E I����mo� �*,~)tE		uVSLVH	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tJRU�\	û b[̂d	b̂	�[bZ]fc{	Fab[b[̂d	v̂f	Gafb[v[_cb[̂d	̂v	Fjxg[_	Ĝ dyad[ad_a	cd]	Ha_a\\[bz	�O�ha][ba]	Ĝ d\[]afcb[̂dKa�ja\ba]�e	N[ga]	xz	ucbbZa{	QcZg\bf̂|e	(1,'E I����mo� �*,~)tE		HVSLGO	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tĤ b[_a	cd]	{[bZ]fc{cg	̂v	Gcvab̂	cd]	u[fcd]c	Ldbafyadb[̂d\w	v[ga]	xz	ucf̀	SẐ|h\̂de		(1,'E ������mo� �*,~)tE		PW�	�RQMO	KRPLHM�uOuVKWHQW	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tGZ[av	WP�	û \af	[\\ja\	Kjg[di�	QLJFVJLSLVH�	uVSLVH	MKWHSOQ�	GRKKOHS	FKVGOQRKWP	JG�OQRPO	JRJFOHQOQeĜ h[a\	\afya]	̂d	�����o�e	(1,'E ������mo� �*,~)tE		VS�OK	NLPLHM�FPOWQLHM	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tJRU�\	gabbaf	cbbc_Z[di	cd	a|c[g	vf̂|	�eGe	�jvv|cd	{[bZ	bZa	G[bz	̂v	Jhf[div[ag]�\	\jhĥfb	v̂f	bZa	a�bad\[̂de	N[ga]	xzOf[d	Q[abafe	(1,'E ���o��mo� �*,~)tE		uVSLVH	 			 ('-*2~s,~)tJRU�\	û b[̂d	b̂	Jj\had]	Ff̂_a]jfcg	J_Za]jgaw	a�ha][ba]	_̂d\[]afcb[̂d	fa�ja\ba]e	N[ga]	xz	ucbbZa{	Pe	QcZg\bf̂|	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%��� ��&

'()*+ ,-,.-/0,1 23)456+		789	:;<=>	?;7@A=-B>BC?8A<8	 			 '*D3E4F)45687:	GHIHJ	?KLM	NKI	87:	OHPIQRS	OKLMI	QTTUMT	?UVQWXY	<@GOCG@Z@CA[	O>Z@Z@CA	ZC	@AZ>?\>A>	=?8AZ><]	AKPQRM	KNK̂WPMTPM_	̂HTM	?QXJPT	HW_	OIKRM_UIMT	HPPHRJM_]	̂K̀QMT	TMIaM_	KW	,-,.-,1]		'()*+ ,-b-/0,1 23)456+		O>Z@Z@CA	ZC	@AZ>?\>A>	 			 '*D3E4F)456@̂Zc	Cd	GO?@A=d@>7<eT	OMPQPQKW	PK	@WPMIaMWMf	LQPJ	RKWPHRPT	KN	=QWK	=IQgHV_Q	HW_	h]	̂]	iUNNgHW]	dQVM_	jk	h]	̂]iUNNgHW]	'()*+ ,-/-/0,1 23)456+		CZi>?	d@7@A=-O7>8<@A=	 			 '*D3E4F)456GO?@A=d@>7<	;Z@7@Zc	lC8?<eT	?MmUMTP	NKI	iU__VM	8RRMTT	NKI	BHPPJML	7]	<HJVTPIKgf	BHPP	̂Knf	HW_	ZHgHIH	OQPgHW]dQVM_	jk	BHPPJML	7]	<HJVTPIKg]	'()*+ ,/-/o-/0,p 23)456+		CZi>?	d@7@A=-O7>8<@A=	 			 '*D3E4F)4568̂d>ZC	̂Cdd>>	̂CBO8AceT	?MmUMTP	NKI	iU__VM	8RRMTT	NKI	@IQKW	GHWXMIf	BHIS	ZJKg T̀KWf	HW_	BQW	iU]	dQVM_	jk	BQWiU]	'()*+ ,/-,/-/0,p 23)456+		789	:;<=>	?;7@A=-B>BC?8A<8	 			 '*D3E4F)45687:	OHPIQRS	OKLMI	QTTUMT	OIMJMHIQWX	̂KWNMIMWRM	BMgKIHW_Ug]	AKPQRM	KN	̂KWPMTPM_	̂HTM	?QXJPT	HW_	OIKRM_UIMTHPPHRJM_]	̂K̀QMT	TMIaM_	KW	,/-,/-,p]		'()*+ ,/-,0-/0,p 23)456+		O>Z@Z@CA	ZC	@AZ>?\>A>	 			 '*D3E4F)4568IPMgQK	OHqf	:I]eT	OMPQPQKW	PK	@WPMIaMWM]	dQVM_	jk	8IPMgQK	OHqf	:I]	'()*+ ,/-.-/0,p 23)456+		CZi>?	d@7@A=-O7>8<@A=	 			 '*D3E4F)456ZJM	?MXQTPMIr=UHI_eT	8NNQ_HaQP	KN	OUjVQRHPQKW	KN	,,-/,-,p	AKPQRM	KN	OUjVQR	̂KggMWP	iMHIQWX	HW_	̂KWNMIMWRMÙjVQTJM_	,,-/,-,p	HW_	,,-/p-,p]	dQVM_	jk	9MW_k	?Hq]	'()*+ ,,-/o-/0,p 23)456+		789	:;<=>	?;7@A=-B>BC?8A<8	 			 '*D3E4F)45687:	OHPIQRS	:]	OKLMI	QTTUMT	?UVQWXY	<@GOCG@Z@CA[	O>Z@Z@CAG	=?8AZ><]	̂K̀QMT	TMIaM_	MVMRPIKWQRHVVk	KW	,,-/o-,p]	'()*+ ,,-/,-/0,p 23)456+		O>Z@Z@CA	ZC	@AZ>?\>A>	 			 '*D3E4F)45687l>?ZC	B@?8A<8eT	HW_	̂8d>ZC	̂Cdd>>	̂CBO8AceT	OMPQPQKW	PK	@WPMIaMWMf	LQPJ	RKWPHRPT	KN	8VjMIPK	BQIHW_Hf8WPKWQK	BQIHW_Hf	BHIS	?]	ZJKg T̀KWf	HW_	@IQKW	8]	GHWXMI]	dQVM_	jk	BHIS]	?]	ZJKg T̀KW]	'()*+ ,,-/,-/0,p 23)456+		̂CAd>?>Â >	 		 '*D3E4F)456ACZ@̂>	Cd	O?>i>8?@A=	̂CAd>?>Â >	QggM_QHPMVk	NKVVKLQWX	O;l7@̂	̂CBB>AZ	i>8?@A=	TRJM_UVM_	,/-,0-,pfo[00	OB]	sGMM	OUjVQR	̂KggMWP	iMHIQWX	WKPQRM	sRKgjQWM_	WKPQRMt	NKI	MVMRPIKWQR	aMITQKWt]	̂CAd>?>Â >	TRJM_UVM_,/-,0-/0,p	o[b0	OB	̂QPk[	GO?@A=d@>7<	?KKg[	d?>@=iZ	?CCB	lUQV_QWX[	GO?@A=d@>7<	̂i8Bl>?	Cd	̂CBB>?̂ >8__IMTT[	,0,	GC;Zi	8	GZ?>>Z	?M̀KIPMI[	<@=@Z87	7HL	:U_XM[	OC9>?f	O8Z?@̂h		'()*+ ,,-/,-/0,p 23)456+		O;l7@̂	̂CBB>AZ	i>8?@A=	 			 '*D3E4F)456ACZ@̂>	Cd	O;l7@̂	̂CBB>AZ	i>8?@A=	u	O?>i>8?@A=	̂CAd>?>Â >Y	̂K̀QMT	TMIaM_	MVMRPIKWQRHVVk	PK	_KRSMP	Ô A	bfQWPMIMTPM_	RKUWPQMT	HW_	RQPQMTf	u	>VMRPIQR	7QTP	,,-/,-,pY	\QH	;]G]	BHQV	PK	HNNMRPM_	̀IK̀MIPk	KLWMIT	u	PJKTM	LQPJKUPMgHQV	H__IMTTMT	,,-/,-,p]	AKPQRM	HVTK	PK	̀UjVQTJ	QW	ZJM	?MXQTPMIr=UHI_	KW	,,-/,-,p	HW_	,,-/p-,p]]	O;l7@̂ĈBB>AZ	i>8?@A=	TRJM_UVM_	,/-,0-/0,p	o[00	OB	̂QPk[	GO?@A=d@>7<	?KKg[	d?>@=iZ	?CCB	lUQV_QWX[GO?@@A=d@>7<	̂i8Bl>?	Cd	̂CBB>?̂ >	8__IMTT[	,0,	GC;Zi	8	GZ?>>Z	?M̀KIPMI[	<@=@Z87	7HL	:U_XM[	OC9>?fO8Z?@̂h		



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%��� &�&

'()*'+,*'-�����	"����
���.�������	.	�
	/���
�	.����������0�	1�������
�	1�0����	�����������
�	2	��	34���	���
������3���
��.�
��	���
���
0���� 	���	�
	�
	�
	������
�	"����	
�	5������6.�����	
������	�
������
�
7)8	9:;)	<:+=9.���������������
���
0>
?��	����
���0���	�
���������	.�����	@���A��	����	B������ CDE	E:<)	FGG)99:8:<:;HFIJKL	(LMILNO	JN	LPQRSMTLUVO	RW	NLPQRNLI	VJSRLX	CDE	YRTLW,	GTRZ[	V\L	]*LV	FIJKL	(LMILN]R̂M_L	VJ	_LV	M	YNLL	IJXUTJMI	JY	V\L	NLMILN	YNĴFIJKL,

àbcd efgehgifej klbmnod		pqrpstuvw	x	qyzs{spr	 			 c̀|l}m~bmnor��sv��sq��	�ps�spw	{u�����	p��������	���	q�������	��	����	v�����	�r�{geff�efh�	v������	���	p�����	�������r�{giff�ie��	��������	�����	��	t������	����������	z���	 �¡�	�� ���	efgi¢gej�	àbcd efgehgifej klbmnod		svsps��	�����s£�psuv�	£ut���svp�	�qpspsuv�	 			 c̀|l}m~bmnos�	���	t�����	��	r��sv��sq��	�ps�spw	{u����	��������	���	£������ �����	��	�¤��� 	£��¥����� �	���	v� �������	�������	t������	����������	r��¥��	��	q�� ��� 	�����		



T
H

O
R

P
, 

P
U

R
D

Y
, 

JE
W

E
T

T
, 

U
R

N
E

S
S

 &
 W

IL
K

IN
S

O
N

, 
P

.C
. 

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

S
 A

T
 L

A
W

 
1

0
1

1
 H

A
R

L
O

W
 R

O
A

D
, 

S
U

IT
E

 3
0

0
, 

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
, 

O
R

 9
7

4
7

7 
P

H
O

N
E
: 

 (
5

4
1

) 
7

4
7-

3
3

5
4

; 
F

A
X

: 
 (

5
4

1
) 

7
4

7-
3

3
6

7
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S PETITION TO INTERVENE – Page 1  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION OF OREGON 
 

In the Matter of: 
 
SPRINGFIELD UTILITY BOARD, 
 
Petition for Certification of Public 
Convenience and Necessity. 

Case No. PCN 3 
 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S PETITION 
TO INTERVENE 

 
 Pursuant to ORS 756.525 and OAR 860-001-0300(2), the City of Springfield (the 

“Petitioner”), by and through its attorney, K.C. Huffman and Thorp, Purdy, Jewett, Urness & 

Wilkinson, P.C., petitions the Public Utility Commission of Oregon (the “Commission”) to grant 

permission to the Petitioner to intervene and appear with full party status in the above-captioned 

proceeding. 

 In support of this Petition, the Petitioner offers the following information: 

1. The Petitioner’s name and contact information: 

 City of Springfield 

 By and through its City Manager, Gino Grimaldi, or his successor or appointee 

 225 Fifth Street, 

 Springfield, OR 97477 

 (541) 726-3700 

 ggrimaldi@springfield-or.gov 

 

2. The name and contact information of the Petitioner’s attorney: 

 K.C. Huffman, 

 Thorp, Purdy, Jewett, Urness & Wilkinson, P.C. 

 1011 Harlow Road, Suite 300 

 Springfield, OR 97477 

 (541) 747-3354 

 kchuffman@thorp-purdy.com 

 

3. If the Petitioner is an organization, the number of members in and purpose of the 

organization: 

mailto:ggrimaldi@springfield-or.gov
mailto:kchuffman@thorp-purdy.com


T
H

O
R

P
, 

P
U

R
D

Y
, 

JE
W

E
T

T
, 

U
R

N
E

S
S

 &
 W

IL
K

IN
S

O
N

, 
P

.C
. 

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

S
 A

T
 L

A
W

 
1

0
1

1
 H

A
R

L
O

W
 R

O
A

D
, 

S
U

IT
E

 3
0

0
, 

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
, 

O
R

 9
7

4
7

7 
P

H
O

N
E
: 

 (
5

4
1

) 
7

4
7-

3
3

5
4

; 
F

A
X

: 
 (

5
4

1
) 

7
4

7-
3

3
6

7
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S PETITION TO INTERVENE – Page 2  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 The Petitioner is a Municipality, as that term is defined in ORS 756.010 – Accordingly, 

this information is not necessary.  

4. The nature and extent of the Petitioner’s interest in the proceedings: 

 The Petitioner has a substantial interest in the proceeding. Petitioner has jurisdiction over 

the Glenwood area and has made significant efforts to revitalize the Glenwood area by adopting 

the Glenwood Refinement Plan. The proposed substation and transmission lines will assist in 

these efforts. 

5. The issues Petitioner intends to raise at the proceedings: 

 The Petitioner intends to raise issues concerning the necessity of the proposed substation 

and transmission lines to the revitalization of the Glenwood area and the exercise of eminent 

domain over the subject property. The Petitioner may also provide insight in response to any 

issues raised by the other Intervenors in this action. 

6. Any special knowledge or expertise of the Petitioner that would assist the Commission in 

resolving the issues in the proceedings: 

 The Petitioner has in-depth knowledge of the property that is at issue in this proceeding 

and the revitalization of the Glenwood area.  

DATED:  January 3, 2019    THORP, PURDY, JEWETT, 

URNESS & WILKINSON, P.C. 

 

 
__________________________ 

K.C. Huffman, OSB#002854 

Attorneys for Petitioner City of Springfield 

E-mail: kchuffman@thorp-purdy.com 

 





�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' %�%%

()*+,(-.)*+,(-	/011234 56789:	7;	<6=9>?	@=A6 6BCDC:A)*+,(-	E*F		GHI	J )*+,(-	E21(F		KLMMNOPPQ	GRS	HTUKLVLHNKLPI	PV	GRWMLH	HPIXTILTIHTNIS	ITHTYYLKZ ����	������[	K\]̂	_̀abcd	]̂	e	àfdĉdc_	aêcg	Ycc	d\c	Lfdchfei	Pjched]fk	lm]_ci]fĉ	ef_	PNU	nopqppr/0st(+-	u*1v2w4F		KLMMNOPPQ	GRS		 	Lf	d\c	Oeddch	̀x	KLMMNOPPQ	GTPGMTyY	RKLMLKZ	SLYKULHKz	Gcd]d]̀f	x̀h	Hchd]x]aed]̀f	̀x	Gm{i]a	H̀ f|cf]cfac	ef_	Icaĉ ]̂d}g	V]ic_{}	K̀~~}	Wh̀ b̀̂g	�Ych|c_	d̀	Ticadh]a	Lf_m̂dh}	M]̂d�����w�	)2-(F		rp�o�Jpr� 		 		�3�(3F		r�qJ�� �3�(3	/��w(�F		��rp�Jpr� 	T~e]i	Ych|]ac	M]̂d	�̂c~]qàìf	_ci]~]dc_�						T~e]i	Ych|]ac	M]̂d	�à~~e	_ci]~]dc_�	 Lx	}̀m	c�jch]cfac	jh̀{ic~ 	̂�]d\	d\c	=�;�6	yT~e]i	Ych|]ac	M]̂dy	i]fb̂z	jicêc	dh}	̀fc	̀x	d\ĉc�Ych|]ac	M]̂d	G̀jmj	�̂c~]qàìf	_ci]~]dc_�					Ych|]ac	M]̂d	G̀jmj	�à~~e	_ci]~]dc_��u���E/ YTUXLHT	MLYK YH�TSRMTỲ hd	W}	Sedc								Ỳ hd	W}	K}jc)2-(F ��rp�Jpr� �+-�*wF		PUSTU	 			 �3�(3	E*F			r�qJ��		 )(.+3�v-�*wPh_ch	Ì g	r�qJ��z	̂]kfc_	{}	H̀ ~~]̂̂ ]̀fcĥ	Ockef	�g	Scabch	ef_	Ydcj\cf	Og	Wì ~̀�	H̀ ~~]̂̂ ]̀fch	Mcd\e	Ke�fc}_]̂̂ cfd]fk�	SLYGPYLKLPI�	GTKLKLPI	lUNIKTSg	H̀ j]ĉ	̂ch|c_	̀f	��rp�r�g		)2-(F ��o�Jpr� �+-�*wF		PK�TU	VLMLIl�GMTNSLIl	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wK]iie~`̀b	Gc̀jicŷ	Rd]i]d}	S]̂dh]adŷ	Mef_	R̂c	Ydedm̂	Rj_edc	MRWN	Ì g	Jprnqrr��	x]ic_	{}	K̀~~}	Wh̀ b̀̂g	)2-(F o�Jp�Jpr� �+-�*wF		PK�TU	VLMLIl�GMTNSLIl	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wK]iie~`̀b	Gc̀jicŷ	Rd]i]d}	S]̂dh]adŷ	Mef_	R̂c	Ydedm̂	Rj_edc	x]ic_	{}	K̀~~}	Ng	Wh̀ b̀̂g		)2-(F ���r�Jpr� �+-�*wF		YTUXLHT	MLYK	H�NIlT	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wHe{ic	�m̂d̀f	�hcjhĉ_cfd]fk	K]iie~`̀b	GRS�	Ì d]ac	̀x	Ych|]ac	M]̂d	N__hĉ 	̂H\efkc	x]ic_	{}	H\e_	Og	Yd̀bĉg		)2-(F ��J�Jpr� �+-�*wF		WULTV	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wKGRSŷ	Hì ]̂fk	Wh]cxg	V]ic_	{}	K̀~~}	Ng	Wh̀ b̀̂g	)2-(F ��Jo�Jpr� �+-�*wF		WULTV	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wYKNVVŷ	Hh̀^̂qNf̂�ch]fk	Wh]cxg	V]ic_	{}	�̀\effe	Og	U]c~cf̂a\fc]_chg	)2-(F ��Jo�Jpr� �+-�*wF		WULTV	 			 )(.+3�v-�*wKLMMNqWNZ	VNUOYz	LIHg	Hh̀^̂qNf̂�ch]fk	Wh]cxg	V]ic_	{}	Qmhd	O]�ccg	)2-(F ��Jo�Jpr� �+-�*wF		WULTV	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' ��%%

			 ()*+,-./-0123452	6378	9:;<<=3><?@:A>B	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	2KLAH	6K<ME	(N/)O PQRSQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-012ZX57	6378	9:;<<=3><?@:A>B	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	2;:A<	6K<ME	(N/)O PQRSQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-01YX59	K>H	[ZXY883	\Y8YX7Z]	9:;<<=3><?@:A>B	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	Y:Â	\@M@:<;>E	(N/)O PQURQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-01783FF_<	X@̀GJ	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	a;bK>>K	XA@c@><̂b>@AH@:E	(N/)O PQURQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-0123452	6378_<	X@̀GJ	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	2KLAH	6K<ME	(N/)O PQURQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-012ZX57	6378_<	X@̀GJ	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	2;:A<	6K<ME	(N/)O PQURQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-012Z]	3dF2YX63dYX_<	X@̀GJ	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	2;>	3eDH@:cKe@:E	(N/)O PQURQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-0185[[3=C3f	F3X67g	5]9E_<	X@̀GJ	C:A@DE	FAG@H	IJ	he:M	6Ai@@E	(N/)O RQRRQRTUV W+/-01O		CX5YF	 			 ()*+,-./-018\d2_<	Z̀ @>A>B	C:A@Dg	DAG@H	IJ	8;ccJ	C:;;j<E		(N/)O RQkQRTUV W+/-01O		[3l	ad2mY	Xd[5]mQ6Y6ZX3]23	 			 ()*+,-./-013[a	\KM:Âj	aE	\;?@:	A<<e@<	XeGA>Bn	257\Z7585Z]n	CX5YF5]m	79oY2d[Y	32Z\8Y2E	9;̀A@<	<@:L@H	@G@̂M:;>ÂKGGJRQkQUV	K>H	IJ	dE7E	6KAG	M;	Mb;<@	?AMb;eM	@cKAG	KHH:@<<@<	RQSQUVE	(N/)O UQRpQRTUV W+/-01O		6Z85Z]	 			 ()*+,-./-018\d2q<	\:;̀;<@H	C:A@DA>B	7̂b@HeG@E	FAG@H	IJ	8;ccJ	3E	C:;;j<E	(N/)O UQRpQRTUV W+/-01O		8Y7856Z]f	r	Yso5C587	 			 ()*+,-./-018\d2_<	X@IeMMKG	8@<MAc;>J	K>H	YtbAIAM<	;D	h9	F3mY]	u8\d2QkTT=kTkg	FKB@>vE	FAG@H	IJ	9bKH	7M;j@<E	oK:H	̂;̀J:@̂_HE	UQRVQUVE	(N/)O UQUwQRTUV W+/-01O		8Y7856Z]f	r	Yso5C587	 			 ()*+,-./-0123452	6378	X@̀GJ	8@<MAc;>J	u23452	6378QPTTg	6K<Mv	uX@<eIcAMM@H	I@̂Ke<@	;D	xLA@?KIAGAMJx	A<<e@<v	DAG@H	IJ	2KLAH6K<ME		



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' &�%%

()*+, -.-/.01-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567:8GHH	IJKLM	8JNOPQRSM	RT	>UVPSJ	BUSWUS	X:OUTT.Y11Z	BUSWUS[	TPLJV	\M	]UM	CÛSJN_	()*+, -.-/.01-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*5678;̀ G̀aCG?	HGI<:Z	;>b_cN	IJKLM	8JNOPQRSM	RT	]d̂O	<PeJJ	X<PeJJ.011[	X/	KUfJN[g	TPLJV	\M	]d̂O	<PeJJ_	()*+, -.-Y.01-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567GhHi9I<Gh9I	HGI<:cN	IJKLM	8JNOPQRSM	RT	iRS	GdTVĴQUdĴ	XiRS	GdTVĴQUdĴ.011[	TPLJV	\M	iUjPV	<UNO_		()*+, -.-k.01-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567iGl;i	<G:8cN	IJKLM	8JNOPQRSM	USV	9mWP\PON	XiUjPV	<UNO.n11[_	HPLJV	\M	iUjPV	<UNO_	X>=89o	GLNR	NJJ	-.-p.-2	JSÔM_[	()*+, -.-k.01-2 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*567i=I;:	<G:8cN	IJKLM	8JNOPQRSM	XiR̂PN	<UNO.n11an1q[_	HPLJV	\M	iR̂PN	<UNO_		()*+, -0.-q.01-q 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*5678rhicN	Ĵ ÛOU	OR	:dKKLJQJSOUL	8JNOPQRSM	USV	9mWP\PON	RT	]b	HGs9>	X8rhi.k11Z	HUfJS[	tR̂ ĴtOPSf	WJUVĴ_	HPLJV	\M8RQQM	ĈRRuN_		()*+, -0.-p.01-q 34*567,		89:8;<=>?	@	9AB;C;8:	 			 (+D4E5F*5678rhicN	:dKKLJQJSOUL	8JNOPQRSM	USV	9mWP\PON	RT	]b	HGs9>	X8rhi.k11a	k-2Z	HUfJS[_	HPLJV	\M	8RQQM	ĈRRuN_	XidJOR	TPLJ	NPeJZ	JmWP\PON	PS	9mtJL	ÛJ	SRO	PStLdVJV	PS	OWPN	KRNOJV	VRtdQJSO_[	XGLNR	NJJ	-0.-q.-q	Ĵ ÛOU	TPLPSf	tR̂ ĴtOPSfWJUVĴ	PS	8rhi.k11Z	HUfJS_[	()*+, -0.-p.01-q 34*567,		̀Gv	whis9	Ih̀ ;>s.<9<=IG>iG	 			 (+D4E5F*567G̀ w	rUÔPtu	w_	rRxĴ	PNNdJN	<JQR̂USVdQ_	bRKPJN	NĴjJV	JLJtÔRSPtULLM	RS	-0.-p.-q	USV	jPU	h_:_	<UPL	OR	OWRNJxPOWRdO	JQUPL	UVV̂JNNJN	RS	-0.-q.-q_	()*+, -0.-1.01-q 34*567,		̀Gv	whis9	Ih̀ ;>s.<9<=IG>iG	 			 (+D4E5F*567G̀ w	rRxĴ	PNNdJN	IdLPSfg	i;:r=:;8;=>o	<=8;=>	sIG>89ig	rI=b9ihI9G̀	:bB9ih̀ 9	<=i;H;9i_	bRKPJN	NĴjJVJLJtÔRSPtULLM	-0.-1.-q	USV	\M	h_:_	<UPL	OR	OWRNJ	xPOWRdO	JQUPL	UVV̂JNNJN	-0.-1.-q_	()*+, -0.p.01-q 34*567,		<=8;=>	 			 (+D4E5F*5678rhi	<ROPRS	OR	<RVPTM	r̂RtJVd̂UL	:tWJVdLJ	a	9mKJVPOJV	bRSNPVĴUOPRS	IJydJNOJV	a	HPLJV	\M	8RQQM	G	ĈRRuN_		()*+, --.0/.01-q 34*567,		8IG>:bI;r8	 		 (+D4E5F*5678̂USNt̂PKO	TR̂	OWJ	--.-.-q	BJÛPSf_	X>RO	KRNOJV_[	rLJUNJ	tRSOUtO	CRLUQ	@	GNNRtPUOJN	TR̂	tRKPJN	UO	XY1n[	02ka1nk/_		()*+, --.0/.01-q 34*567,		̀Gv	whis9	Ih̀ ;>s.<9<=IG>iG	 			 (+D4E5F*567G̀ w	rUÔPtu	w_	rRxĴ	PNNdJN	IdLPSfg	i;:r=:;8;=>o	9l;i9>b9	I9b9;l9i_	bRKPJN	NĴjJV	JLJtÔRSPtULLM	RS	--.0/.-qUSV	jPU	h_:_	<UPL	OR	OWRNJ	xPOWRdO	JQUPL	UVV̂JNNJN	RS	--.0/.-q_	()*+, --.2.01-q 34*567,		̀Gv	whis9	Ih̀ ;>s.<9<=IG>iG	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' (�%%

			 )*+,-./0.12345	6789:;<	5=	6>?@9	:AAB@A	CBD:EFG	HIJ6KJILIKMG	3HHILIKM34	LNJLIOKMP	CNQRICNHS	TCINUIMV	JWXNHR4NY3W3LNHS	3MH	KUUIWI34	MKLIWN	L3ZNM=	W>[:@A	A@9\@]	@D@;89>E:;7DD̂	__̀à_b	7E]	ĉ	R=J=	O7:D	8>	8d>A@	?:8d>B8@e7:D	7]]9@AA@A	__̀à_b=	)f0*g __̀b̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12K9@F>E	U79e	TB9@7B	U@]@978:>EkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@\:>BAD̂	U:D@]	L@A8:e>Êl	8>F@8d@9	?:8d	H@;D7978:>E	>m	O79̂3EE@	W>>[@9=	U:D@]	ĉ	O79̂	3EE@	W>>[@9=	)f0*g __̀ǹhi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12K9@F>E	H7:9̂	U79e@9A	3AA>;:78:>EkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Êl	8>F@8d@9	?:8d	H@;D7978:>E	>m	L7e:	Z@99=U:D@]	ĉ	L7e:	Z@99=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12ZCIJLI	JXNCNCkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Ê	pH@;D7978:>E	m:D@]	__̀_̀_bq=	U:D@]	ĉ	Z9:A8:	Jd@9@9=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		MKLIWN	 			 )*+,-./0.12Wd:@m	345	O:;d7@D	V97E8	:AAB@A	7	M>8:;@	>m	Nr	6798@	W>eeBE:;78:>E=	W>[:@A	A@9\@]	@D@;89>E:;7DD̂	>E	__̀_̀_b	7E]	\:7R=J=	O7:D	8>	8d>A@	?:8d>B8	@e7:D	7]]9@AA@A	>E	__̀_̀_b=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		KLXNC	UI4IMV̀64N3HIMV	 			 )*+,-./0.12ZCIJLI	JXNCNCkA	H@;D7978:>E=	U:D@]	ĉ	Z9:A8:	Jd@9@9=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12NCIW	7E]	4KCNLL3	6NLNCJKM	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Êl	8>F@8d@9	?:8d	H@;D7978:>E	>m	N9:;	7E]	4>9@8876@8@9A>E=	U:D@]	ĉ	N9:;	7E]	4>9@887	6@8@9A>E=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12LI443oT3P	U3COJl	IMW=kA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Êl	8>F@8d@9	?:8d	H@;D7978:>E	>m	ZB98	O:s@@=	U:D@]	ĉ	ZB98O:s@@=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12HKM	3RUHNCO3RNCkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Ê	pH@;D7978:>E	m:D@]	_ìt_̀_bq=	U:D@]	ĉ	H>E	3Bm]@9e7B@9=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12HKCIJ	O3JLkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Ê	pH@;D7978:>E	m:D@]	_ìt_̀_bq=	U:D@]	ĉ	H>9:A	O7A8=	)f0*g __̀_̀hi_b j,0.12g		OKLIKM	 			 )*+,-./0.12H3YIH	O3JLkA	O>8:>E	8>	3]e:8	69@oU:D@]	L@A8:e>Ê	pH@;D7978:>E	m:D@]	_ìt_̀_bq=	U:D@]	ĉ	H7\:]	O7A8=	)f0*g _ìt_̀hi_b j,0.12g		KLXNC	UI4IMV̀64N3HIMV	 			 )*+,-./0.12HKM	3RUHNCO3RNC	H@;D7978:>E	m:D@]	ĉ	H>E	3Bm]@9e7B@9=	)f0*g _ìt_̀hi_b j,0.12g		KLXNC	UI4IMV̀64N3HIMV	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' (�%%

			 )*+,-./0.1234567	897:;<	3=>?@A@BCDEF	GC?=H	IJ	3DAC<	8@<BF	)K0*L MNOPMOQNMR S,0.12L		4:TU5	G6V6WXOYVU936WX	 			 )*+,-./0.1239Z63	897:;<	3=>?@A@BCDEF	GC?=H	IJ	3@[CH	8@<BF	)K0*L MNOPMOQNMR S,0.12L		84:64W	 			 )*+,-./0.1245\9;<	8DBCDE	BD	9H]CB	YA=̂GC?=H	:=<BC]DEJ	D_	B̀=	4a=ECEb	:=<BC]DEJ	@EH	5=<aDE<=	:=<BC]DEJ	@EH	Uc̀CICB<dBDb=B̀=A	eCB̀	H=>?@A@BCDE	D_	7=@E	8@?DE=F	GC?=H	IJ	7=@E	8@?DE=F	)K0*L MNOPMOQNMR S,0.12L		4:TU5	G6V6WXOYVU936WX	 			 )*+,-./0.1245\9;<	9]=EH=H	WDBC>=	D_	fCB̀HA@e@?	D_	\AD<<	Uc@]CE@BCDE	5=gh=<BF	GC?=H	IJ	7=@E	8@?DE=F	)K0*L MNOPMOQNMR S,0.12L		4:TU5	G6V6WXOYVU936WX	 			 )*+,-./0.1245\9;<	fCB̀HA@e@?	D_	\AD<<	Uc@]CE@BCDE	5=gh=<BF	GC?=H	IJ	7=@E	8@?DE=F	)K0*L MNOMiOQNMR S,0.12L		TU956WX	 			 )*+,-./0.12W4:6\U	4G	TU956WX	<=B	_DA	MMOMOMRF	\DaC=<	<=A[=H	=?=>BADEC>@??J	DE	MNOMiOMR	@EH	[C@	jF7F	8@C?	BD	B̀D<=	eCB̀DhB=]@C?	@HHA=<<=<	DE	MNOMiOMRF	TU956WX	<>̀=Hh?=H	MMOMOQNMR	MkNN	Y8	\CBJk	:6VV9844l	5DD]k	896W	\4WG	5448mhC?HCEbk	Y45:	4G	:6VV9844l	m9n	9HHA=<<k	oNNN	mV68Y	mVZ3	5=aDAB=Ak	m4V98	p	9774\7	V@e	qhHb=k	Y4fU5dY9:56\l		)K0*L rOMQOQNMR S,0.12L		V9f	qj3XU	\4WGU5UW\U	5UY45:	 			 )*+,-./0.129Vq	Y@BAC>s	qF	YDe=A	C<<h=<	YA=̀=@ACEb	\DE_=A=E>=	8=]DA@EHh]d	BDb=B̀=A	eCB̀	HA@_B	_DA]	_DA	B̀=	<hI]C<<CDE	D_B=<BC]DEJ	@EH	@HDaBCEb	IAC=_CEb	<>̀=Hh?=F	\DaC=<	<=A[=H	=?=>BADEC>@??J	DE	rOMQOMR	@EH	[C@	jF7F	8@C?	BD	B̀D<=	eCB̀DhB=]@C?	@HHA=<<=<	DE	rOMQOMRF		)K0*L rOtOQNMR S,0.12L		84:64W	 			 )*+,-./0.127:9GG;<	8DBCDE	BD	9H]CB	YA=̂GC?=H	7B@__	:=<BC]DEJ	D_	4a=ECEb	:=<BC]DEJ	@EH	Uc̀CICB<	D_	7>DBB	XCII=E<	u7B@__OMNN̂MMMdXCII=E<vd	@EH	W@HCE=	T@È @E	u7B@__OQNN̂QNwdT@È @Evx	@EH	\AD<<̂9E<e=ACEb	@EH	5=a?J	:=<BC]DEJ	@EH	Uc̀CICB<D_	7>DBB	XCII=E<	u7B@__OPNN̂PNidXCII=E<v	@EH	W@HCE=	T@È @E	u7B@__OoNN̂oMPdT@È @Evx	BDb=B̀=A	eCB̀	3=>?@A@BCDE<D_	7>DBB	XCII=E<	@EH	W@HCE=	T@È @EF	GC?=H	IJ	qD̀@EE@	8F	5C=]=E<>̀E=CH=AF	)K0*L ROROQNMR S,0.12L		\4WGU5UW\U	 			 )*+,-./0.12W4:6\U	4G	:UVUYT4WU	Y5UTU956WX	\4WGU5UW\U	<=B	_DA	rOMMOMRF	\DaC=<	<=A[=H	=?=>BADEC>@??J	DE	ROROMR	@EH	[C@jF7F	8@C?	BD	B̀D<=	eCB̀DhB	=]@C?	@HHA=<<=<	DE	ROrOMRF	\4WGU5UW\U	<>̀=Hh?=H	rOMMOQNMR	rkPN	98	5DD]k	Z69:UVUYT4WU	5=aDAB=Ak	36X6:9V	V@e	qhHb=k	Y4fU5d	Y9:56\l	Y?=@<=	>DEB@>B	9T3	@B	uiNPv	PtR̂wwtR	DA	=̂]@C?	BDah>F̀=@ACEb<y<B@B=FDAFh<	_DA	B̀=	HC@?̂CE	Eh]I=A	@EH	a@ABC>Ca@EB	@>>=<<	>DH=F	)K0*L ROQOQNMR S,0.12L		4:TU5	G6V6WXOYVU936WX	 			 )*+,-./0.12Y=BCBCDE=A;<	V@EH	j<=	YAD>==HCEb	7B@Bh<	5=aDABd	@EH	A=gh=<B	_DA	@	aA=̀=@ACEb	>DE_=A=E>=F	GC?=H	IJ	:D]]J	9FmADDs<F	)K0*L iOPMOQNMR S,0.12L		4:TU5	G6V6WXOYVU936WX	 			 )*+,-./0.12Y=BCBCDE=Az<	V@EH	j<=	YAD>==HCEb	7B@Bh<	5=aDABF	GC?=H	IJ	:D]]J	9F	mADDs<F	)K0*L oOQiOQNMR S,0.12L		V9f	qj3XU	5jV6WXO8U8459W39	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' ��%%

			 ()*+,-./-01234	56789:;	4<	5=>?8	9@@A?@	BAC9DEF	GHI5JIHKHJLM	NJKHJL	OB2LKPG<	Q=R9?@	@?8S?T	?C?:78=D9:6CCU	=D	VWXYWZ[	6DTS96	\<I<	N69C	7=	7]=@?	>97]=A7	?̂ 69C	6TT8?@@?@	=D	VWX_WZ[<		(̀ /)a VWZbWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01P89:	6DT	3=8?776	5?7?8@=De@	B?@R=D@?	7=	I76ffe@	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	7]?	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?	gR=@7̂ 68;?T	VWZhWZ[i<j9C?T	kU	P89:	6DT	3=8?776	5?7?8@=D<	(̀ /)a VWZ[WXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01JBQ2e@	B?@R=D@?	7=	I76ffe@	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	7]?	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?<	j9C?T	kU	I?6D	N6C=D?<	(̀ /)a VWZhWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01Jjle@	6DT	JGj2e@	B?@R=D@?	7=	I76ffe@	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?<	j9C?T	kU	N68U	2DD?	Q==R?8	6DT	K6̂ 9m?88<	(̀ /)a VWZhWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01K5\Ge@	B?@R=D@?	7=	I76ffe@	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?<	j9C?T	kU	K=̂ ^U	2<	l8==;@<	(̀ /)a VWZnWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01JBQ2e@	8?@R=D@?	7=	9@@A?@	C9@7<	j9C?T	kU	I?6D	N6C=D?<	(̀ /)a VWZnWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01KH332ol2p	j2BNIq	HLQ<e@	B?@R=D@?	7=	7]?	H@@A?@	39@7	R?8	7]?	R8?]?689DE	:=Df?8?D:?	=D	2R89C	Vq	XcZ[<	j9C?T	kU	mA87N9r??<	(̀ /)a VWZnWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01G2sHG	N2IKq	GJBHI	N2IKq	6DT	GJL	2\jGPBN2\PB	B?@R=D@?	7=	7]?	H@@A?@	39@7	R?8	7]?	R8?]?689DE	:=Df?8?D:?	=D2R89C	Vq	XcZ[q	f9C?T	kU	G6S9T	N6@7q	G=89@	N6@7q	6DT	G=D	2AfT?8̂ 6A?8<	(̀ /)a VWZXWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01KH332ol2p	j2BNIq	HLQ<e@	?̂ 69C	9D	@ARR=87	=f	I76ffe@	N=79=D	f9C?T	kU	mA87	N9r??<		(̀ /)a VWZXWXcZ[ d+/-01a		QJNNPLKIWBPI5JLIP	 			 ()*+,-./-01G6S9T	N6@7	6DT	G=89@	N6@7	P̂ 69C	9D	IARR=87	=f	I76ff	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?	f9C?T	kU	G6S9T	N6@7	6DTG=89@	N6@7<		(̀ /)a VWZcWXcZ[ d+/-01a		NJKHJL	 			 ()*+,-./-01IK2jje@	N=79=D	7=	N=T9fU	58=:?TA86C	I:]?TAC?<	j9C?T	kU	4=]6DD6	N<	B9?̂ ?D@:]D?9T?8	(̀ /)a VWYWXcZ[ d+/-01a		32t	4\GOP	B\3HLOWNPNJB2LG2	 			 ()*+,-./-01234	56789:;	4<	5=>?8	9@@A?@	BAC9DEM	GHI5JIHKHJLM	IK2jj	GHBPQKPG	KJ	jH3P	NJKHJL<	Q=R9?@	@?8S?T	?C?:78=D9:6CCUVWYWZ[	6DT	kU	\<I<	N69C	7=	7]=@?	>97]=A7	?̂ 69C	6TT8?@@?@	VWYWZ[<	(̀ /)a VWXWXcZ[ d+/-01a		JKuPB	jH3HLOW53P2GHLO	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' (�%%

			 )*+,-./0.12345678	9:;:<=	4>?@?8AB	C88DA8	EF8G	H8AIG	G?	4J>GFA8	KL	3456	?I	9:;:<=MN	OFPAB	KL	EJD>AI	QG>JDRS	?I	T:<<:<=N	)U0*V W:;;:;X<= Y,0.12V		Z[\O]̂ ]\Z]	 			 )*+,-./0.12\[3CZ]	[O	3]E]4_[\]	4̂ ]_]̀ Ĉ\a	Z[\O]̂ ]\Z]	8RSABDPAB	b?>	9:9:;X<=	;cXX	4dN	Z?@FA8	8A>eAB	W:;;:<=NÂ@?>GA>c	6CaC3̀E	EJf	gDBhAc	4[i]̂ j	4̀ 3̂ CZk		)U0*V W:<l:;X<= Y,0.12V		Ẑ [QQ	]m̀ d	Q3̀3]d]\3	 			 )*+,-./0.12345678	Z>?88n]oJpFIJGF?I	QGJGApAIGN	OFPAB	KL	3?ppL	̀N	q>??r8N	)U0*V W:<l:;X<= Y,0.12V		Ẑ [QQ	]m̀ d	Q3̀3]d]\3	 			 )*+,-./0.12Q3̀OO78	Z>?88n]oJpFIJGF?I	QGJGApAIGN	OFPAB	KL	g?SJIIJ	dN	̂FApAI8RSIAFBA>N	)U0*V W:<l:;X<= Y,0.12V		Ẑ [QQ	]m̀ d	Q3̀3]d]\3	 			 )*+,-./0.12[>Ah?I	Z?J8G	̀PPFJIRA78	H[̂ Z̀ 78M	Z>?88n]oJpFIJGF?I	QGJGApAIGN	OFPAB	KL	QAJI	dJP?IAN	)U0*V W:l:;X<= Y,0.12V		Èi	g56a]	̂5EC\a:d]d[̂ \̀6̀ 	 			 )*+,-./0.12Èg	4JG>FRr	gN	4?fA>	F88DA8	̂DPFIhc	6CQ4[QC3C[\c	Ẑ [QQn]m̀ dC\̀ 3C[\	]Q3Cd̀ 3]Q	3[	q]	OCE]6N	Z?@FA8	8A>eABAPARG>?IFRJPPL	W:l:<=	JIB	KL	5NQN	dJFP	G?	GS?8A	fFGS?DG	ApJFP	JBB>A88A8	W:s:<=N	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.123CEÈd[[k	4][4E]7Q	53CEC3t	6CQ3̂ CZ378	Z>?88ǹI8fA>FIh	3A8GFp?IL	JIB	]oSFKFG8	?b	kZ	OJhAI	H3456:WXXnW<XjOJhAIMN	OFPAB	KL	q>FGGJ	_AI>LN	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.12Q3̀OO78	Z>?88ǹI8fA>FIh	JIB	̂A@PL	3A8GFp?IL	JIB	]oSFKFG8	?b	QR?GG	aFKKAI8	HQGJbb:WXXnWXvjaFKKAI8M	JIB	\JBFIA_JISJI	HQGJbb:9XXn9<Wj_JISJIMw	OFPAB	KL	g?SJIIJ	dN	̂FApAI8RSIAFBA>N	H\?GAc	]oSFKFG8	QGJbb:9X9n<<<j_JISJI	F8	G??e?PDpFI?D8	JIB	I?G	@?8GABw	KDG	SJeA	KAAI	pJFPAB	@A>	R?eA>	PAGGA>NM	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.12[̂ Z̀ 	̂A8@?I8A	3A8GFp?IL	JIB	]oSFKFG8	̀n]	?b	QAJI	dJP?IA	H]oSFKFG	̀j	4a]	@?fA>	PFIA8	PFIrAB	G?	fFIA	R?DIG>L	bF>A8w]oSFKFG	qj	xDJIGFbLFIh	GSA	]R?I?pFR	̂F8r	?b	iFPBbF>A8	JIB	4?fA>	PFIA8	FI	QJI	6FAh?	Z?DIGLw	]oSFKFG	Zj	3FPPJp??rZ?DIGL	QGJbb	̂A@?>Gw	]oSFKFG	6	3>JI8pF88F?I	e8N	BF8G>FKDGF?I	@?fA>	PFIA8w	]oSFKFG	]j	6FbbA>AIRA	KAGfAAI	3>JI8pF88F?IJIB	6F8G>FKDGF?I	EFIAMN	OFPAB	KL	QAJI	dJP?IAN	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.126̀ yC6	d̀ Q378	̂A@PL	3A8GFp?IL	H6JeFB	dJ8G:;XXMN	OFPAB	KL	6JeFB	dJ8GN	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.126[̂ CQ	d̀ Q378	̂A@PL	3A8GFp?IL	H6?>F8	dJ8G:;XXMN	OFPAB	KL	6?>F8	dJ8GN	)U0*V W:;:;X<= Y,0.12V		3]Q3Cd[\t	u	]m_CqC3Q	 			 )*+,-./0.123CEÈnq̀ t	Ò d̂Qj	C\ZN78	̂A@PL	3A8GFp?IL	?b	kD>G	dFzAA	H<<	@JhA8MN	OFPAB	KL	kD>G	dFzAAN	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' (�%%

)*+,- ./0/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678>HIJKL	MKNOP	QRRSNLTIUO	V>WMQX	9IOPSYKLZ	K[	;INL	9\	=NRKLI	V]	̂NJIO_	̀SRIa	./0/23X\	̀SRIa	bZ	;INL	9\	=NRKLI\	)*+,- ./0/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+6789cI	>HIJKL	̀NHY	DdHINd	̀IaIHNPSKLUO	V>̀ DX	NLa	>HIJKL	eNSHZ	̀NHYIHO	QOOKTSNPSKLUO	V>è QX	fKSLP	9IOPSYKLZ	K[	>̀ DNLa	>è Q	K[	=NHZ	QLLI	MKK̂IH	NLa	9NYS	gIHH	V?KhIYbIH	2i_	.120	jIPPIH	PK	Qjf	kKlIHX\	̀SRIa	bZ	=NHZ	QLLI	MKK̂IHNLa	9NYS	gIHH\	)*+,- ./0/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678gHSOPS	;cIHIHUO	9IOPSYKLZ	V̀IbHdNHZ	m_	.123	jIPPIH	PK	Qjf	kKlIHX	PKJIPcIH	lSPc	:ncSbSP	2_	=IYKHNLadY	K[QJHIIYILPo	:ncSbSP	._	kNJI	]	K[	pPSRSPZ	=NHqIP	<LSPSNPShI_	>HIJKL	rNhI	:LIHJZ	kHKsITPX\	̀SRIa	bZ	gHSOPS	;cIHIH\	)*+,- ./0/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678;9Q̀ ÙO	>̂ ILSLJ	9IOPSYKLZ	NLa	:ncSbSPO	K[	;TKPP	tSbbILO	V;PN[[/211u222_tSbbILOX	NLa	?NaSLI	CNLcNL	V;PN[[/.11u.1m_CNLcNLXo	̀SRIa	bZ	gNZ	DNHLIO\	)*+,- ./]/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678:HST	NLa	jKHIPPN	kIPIHOKL	9IOPSYKLZ	V̀IbHdNHZ	]_	.123	jIPPIHX_	PKJIPcIH	lSPc	:ncSbSPO	VeITIYbIH	2._	.120	jIPPIH	HIvrHSPPIL	MKYYILPO	K[	:HST	kIPIHOKLo	>TPKbIH	w2_	.120	jIPPIH	[HKY	9kpe	lSPc	NL	:NOIYILP_	eITIYbIH	m_	.120OPNPIYILP_	=N̂	K[	kHK̂KOIa	:NOIYILP	QHIN_	̀SHOP	QYIHSTNL	9SPRI	=N̂	lSPc	:ncSbSP	QX\	̀SRIa	bZ	:HST	kIPIHOKL\	)*+,- ./]/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+6789<jjQuDQ@	̀QW=;_	<?M\UO	9IOPSYKLZ	K[	gdHP	=SxII	VfNLdNHZ	.m_	.12y	jIPPIHX_	PKJIPcIH	lSPc	:ncSbSPO	2uy\	̀SRIa	bZgdHP	=SxII\	)*+,- 2/2m/.123 45+678-		>9C:W	̀<j<?t/kj:Qe<?t	 			 ),E5F6G+6789cI	CINaRSJcP	CIHNRaUO	Q[[SaNhSP	K[	kdbRSTNPSKL	K[	22/2i/20	?KPSTI	K[	kdbRST	MKYYILP	CINHSLJ	NLa	MKL[IHILTId̂bRSOcIa	21/.]/20	NLa	22/2/20\	̀SRIa	bZ	9SLN	;dI	DNdIH\	)*+,- 2/2./.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678eQz<e	=Q;9UO	9IOPSYKLZ	NLa	:ncSbSPO	2uy\	̀SRIa	bZ	eNhSa	=NOP\	)*+,- 2/22/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678e>W<;	=Q;9UO	9IOPSYKLZ	NLa	:ncSbSPO	2u0\	̀SRIa	bZ	eKHSO	=NOP\	)*+,- 2/22/.123 45+678-		9:;9<=>?@	A	:BC<D<9;	 			 ),E5F6G+678Qp̀ e:W=Qp:W	̀QW=;UO	9IOPSYKLZ	K[	eKL	NLa	eNLN	Qd[aIHYNdIH	VeITIYbIH	._	.120	jIPPIHX_	PKJIPcIH	lSPc	:ncSbSPOVeITIYbIH	i_	.120	jIPPIH	PK	9kpe_	?KhIYbIH	2i_	.120	jIPPIH	PK	Qjf	kKlIH_	NLa	]	̂NJI	kIPSPSKL	K[	kHK̂IHPZ>lLIHOX\	̀SRIa	bZ	eKL	Qd[aIHYNdIH\	)*+,- 2/3/.123 45+678-		jQr	fpet:	Wpj<?t/=:=>WQ?eQ	 			 ),E5F6G+678Qjf	kNPHSTq	kKlIH	SOOdIO	WdRSLJo	e<;k>;<9<>?v	=>9<>?	tWQ?9:e\	MK̂SIO	OIHhIa	KL	2/3/23\		)*+,- 2/w/.123 45+678-		jQr	fpet:	Wpj<?t/=:=>WQ?eQ	 			 ),E5F6G+678



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' '�%%

()*	+,-./01	*2	+345.	/66756	.78/9:;	<56=3965	-/>5	6?3.-595@2	A3=/56	65.B5@	5850-.39/0,88C	DEFDGFEH	,9@	IC	JK	L,/8-3	-?365	4/-?37-	5>,/8	,@@.56656	DEFDMFEH2	NOPQR EFGFSDEH TUPVWXR		LYZ[Y\	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXKZ(̀ à6	L3-/39	-3	(>59@	+.305@7.,8	K0?5@785	bcd=5@/-5@	A396/@5.,-/39	<5e756-5@fg	h/85@	IC	*3?,99,</5>5960?95/@5.2	NOPQR EFGFSDEH TUPVWXR		Kc<i[Ac	)[KZ	Aj(\kc	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXKZ(̀ à6	<5e756-	-3	A?,9:5	-?5	K5.B/05	)/6-g	.5>3B/9:	k53hh.5C	[?85	,9@	,@@/9:	\,@/95	j,9?,92	̀/85@	IC	*3?,99,</5>5960?95/@5.2	NOPQR ESFESFSDEl TUPVWXR		)(m	*Jnkc	<J)[\kFLcLY<(\n(	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWX()*	+345.	/66756	<78/9:o	n/6=36/-/39;	+5-/-/396	-3	[9-5.B595	k.,9-5@2	\3-/05	3h	A39-56-5@	A,65	</:?-6	,9@+.305@7.56	,--,0?5@2	A3=/56	65.B5@	5850-.39/0,88C	5850-.39/0,88C	,9@	IC	JK	L,/8	-3	-?365	4/-?37-	5>,/8	,@@.56656ESFESFEl22		NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXY.5:39	n,/.C	̀,.>5.6a	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	Z,>/	q5..2	NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		ZcKZ[LY\r	s	ctj[u[ZK	 		 NQ]ÛV_PVWXY.5:39	A3,6-	(88/,905a6	Z56-/>39C	3h	K5,9	Z2	L,8395	v\3B5>I5.	EMg	SDEl	85--5.	-3	()*	+345.wg	.505/B5@	4/-?+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	K5,9	Z2	L,83952	vK55	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B595	59-.C	h3.	5850-.39/0	B5.6/392w	NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXY.5:39	A3,6-	(88/,905a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B595g	-3:5-?5.	4/-?	-56-/>39C2	̀/85@	IC	K5,9	Z2	L,83952	NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXq./6-/	K?5.5.a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	q./6-/	K?5.5.2	NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXq7.-	L/x55a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	q7.-	L/x552	NOPQR ESFpFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXY.5:39	̀,.>	u7.5,7	̀5@5.,-/39a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	L,.C	(995	A33=5.2	NOPQR ESFMFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXZ3@@	(2	*36/a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	Z3@@	(2	*36/2	NOPQR ESFMFSDEl TUPVWXR		+cZ[Z[Y\	ZY	[\Zc<ic\c	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWXn39	(7h@5.>,75.a6	+5-/-/39	-3	[9-5.B5952	̀/85@	IC	n39	(7h@5.>,75.2	NOPQR EEFEyFSDEl TUPVWXR		)(m	*Jnkc	AY\̀ c<c\Ac	<c+Y<Z	 			 NQ]ÛV_PVWX()*	+,-./01	+345.	/66756	+.5?5,./9:	A39h5.5905	L5>3.,9@7>o	\3-/05	3h	A39-56-5@	A,65	</:?-6	=7.67,9-	-3	Y<KEHG2MEG	,--,0?5@2	A3=/56	65.B5@	5850-.39/0,88C	EEFEyFEl	,9@	B/,	J2K2	L,/8	-3	-?365	4/-?37-	5>,/8	,@@.56656EEFEyFEl2	



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' %��%%()*+(,-+(.�����	"����
��� /*0	123*	42,516������������ 789	924*	:;;*11202423<

=>?@A BBCBDCEFBG HI?JKLA		MNOPOPQR	OQ	PRONSTNRN	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLNXYZ	[\	M]̂]X_̀ab_	M]̂ŶỲa	̂̀ 	Pâ]Xc]a]\	dYe]f	gh	NXYZ	[\	M]̂]X_̀a\	=>?@A BBCBDCEFBG HI?JKLA		MNOPOPQR	OQ	PRONSTNRN	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLiXhZ]	jkŶlb_	M]̂ŶỲa	̂̀ 	Pâ]Xc]a]\	dYe]f	gh	iXhZ]	jkŶl\	=>?@A BBCBDCEFBG HI?JKLA		MNOPOPQR	OQ	PRONSTNRN	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLmncYf	on_̂b_	M]̂ŶỲa	̂̀ 	Pâ]Xc]a]\	dYe]f	gh	mncYf	on_̂\	=>?@A BBCBDCEFBG HI?JKLA		MNOPOPQR	OQ	PRONSTNRN	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLm̀ XY_	on_̂b_	M]̂ŶỲa	̂̀ 	Pâ]Xc]a]\	dYe]f	gh	m̀ XY_	on_̂\	=>?@A BBCBDCEFBG HI?JKLA		MNOPOPQR	OQ	PRONSTNRN	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLi]a	pn̂lnqnhb_	M]̂ŶỲa	̂̀ 	Pâ]Xc]a]\	dYe]f	gh	i]a	pn̂lnqnh\	=>?@A BFCErCEFBG HI?JKLA		sQRdNSNRsN	 		 =@UIVJW?JKLRQOPsN	Qd	MSNpNtSPRu	sQRdNSNRsN	Ykk]fYn̂]eh	v̀eèqYaw	Mxi[Ps	sQooNRO	pNtSPRu	_Zl]fye]f	BBCBDCEFBGz{FF	Mo	|j]]	MygeYZ	s̀ kk]â	p]nXYaw	à ŶZ]	|Z̀kgYa]f	à ŶZ]}	v̀X	]e]ẐX̀aYZ	c]X_Ỳa}\	MSNpNtSPRu	sQRdNSNRsN_Zl]fye]f	BBCBDCEFBG	G{FF	Mo	sŶh{	OP[[toQQ~	S̀ k̀{	SQQoj	EBDCEBr	iyYefYaw{	OP[[toQQ~	it�	sQooxRPO�sQ[[NuN	tffX]__{	D�FB	OpPSm	jO	S]�̀ X̂]X{	mPuPOt[	[nq	�yfw]{	MQ�NS�	MtOSPs~		=>?@A BFCErCEFBG HI?JKLA		Mxi[Ps	sQooNRO	pNtSPRu	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLRQOPsN	Qd	Mxi[Ps	sQooNRO	pNtSPRu	�	MSNpNtSPRu	sQRdNSNRsN�	s̀ �Y]_	_]Xc]f	]e]ẐX̀aYZneeh	̂̀ 	f̀Z�]̂	MsR	E�Pâ]X]_̂]f	Z̀yâY]_	naf	ZŶY]_�	�	Ne]ẐXYZ	[Y_̂	BFCErCBG�	TYn	x\j\	onYe	̂̀ 	nvv]Ẑ]f	�X̀�]X̂h	̀qa]X_	�	̂l̀_]	qŶl̀ ŷ]knYe	nffX]__]_	BFCErCBG\	R̀ ŶZ]	ne_̀	̂̀ 	�ygeY_l	Ya	Ol]	p]nfeYwl̂	p]Xnef	BFCErCBG	�	BBCBCBG\	Mxi[Ps	sQooNROpNtSPRu	_Zl]fye]f	BBCBDCEFBG	z{FF	Mo	MSNpNtSPRu	sQRdNSNRsN	Ykk]fYn̂]eh	v̀eèqYaw	sŶh{	OP[[toQQ~S̀ k̀{	SQQoj	EBDCEBr	iyYefYaw{	OP[[toQQ~	it�	sQooxRPO�	sQ[[NuN	tffX]__{	D�FB	OpPSm	jO	S]�̀ X̂]X{mPuPOt[	[nq	�yfw]{	MQ�NS�	MtOSPs~		=>?@A BFCE�CEFBG HI?JKLA		QOpNS	dP[PRuCM[NtmPRu	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLOP[[toQQ~	Mxmb_	S]�y]_̂	v̀X	pyffe]	tZZ]__�	vYe]f	gh	Òkkh	iX̀ �̀_\		=>?@A BFCzCEFBG HI?JKLA		ONjOPoQR�	�	N�pPiPOj	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLOP[[toQQ~	Mxmb_	O]_̂Yk àh	̀v	Òff	jYkk à_	|OMxmCBFF�BFz�	jYkk à_}	naf	~s	dnw]a	|OMxmCEFF�EBE�	dnw]a}\dYe]f	gh	Òkkh	iX̀ �̀_\		=>?@A BFCzCEFBG HI?JKLA		PRPOPt[	|tMM[PstOPQR�	sQoM[tPRO�	MNOPOPQR}	 			 =@UIVJW?JKLPa	̂l]	on̂ ]̂X	̀v	OP[[toQQ~	MNQM[Nbj	xOP[PO�	mPjOSPsO�	M]̂ŶỲa	v̀X	s]X̂YvYZn̂Ỳa	̀v	MygeYZ	s̀ ac]aY]aZ]	nafR]Z]__Ŷh\	dYe]f	gh	Òkkh	iX̀ �̀_\	�j]Xc]f	̂̀ 	Ne]ẐXYZ	Pafy_̂Xh	[Y_̂�		



�������� �����	
�	���
��	������	�������	�
������
�	
�	���
�

�����������������������
������
� �����
� ������!"
� ��#"$�%�&' %%�%%

(�������	(	�
	)���
�	(����������*�	+�������
�	+�*����	�����������
�	,	��	-.���	���
������-���
��(�
��	���
���
*���� 	���	�
	�
	�
	������
�	"����	
�	/������0(�����	
������	�
������
�
���
���
*1
2��	����
���*���	�
���������	(�����	3���4��	����	5������ 6789:	;:<7:=>	8=	:?@AB<C:DE>	AF	=:?@A=:7	E8BA:G	HIJ	KAC:FL	MCANO	EP:	QR:E	6789:	;:<7:=QAS<T:	E8	T:E	<	K=::	78GDC8<7	8K	EP:	=:<7:=	K=8S6789:L









 

 

 

November 14, 2017 

 

Oregon Public Utility Commission 

Administrative Law Judge Patrick Power 

Attn: PCN 2 

PO Box 1088 

Salem, Oregon 97308 

 

Via email: puc.hearings@state.or.us 

 

RE: Oregon Farm Bureau, Tillamook County Farm Bureau, and Oregon Dairy 

Farmers Association Comments on the Tillamook PUD Application for a Certificate 

of Public Convenience and Necessity 

 

Dear ALJ Power,  

 

The Oregon Farm Bureau Federation (OFB), Tillamook County Farm Bureau (TCFB) and 

Oregon Dairy Farmers Association (ODFA) appreciate the opportunity to comment on the 

Tillamook People’s Utility District’s (Tillamook PUD) petition for a Certificate of Public 

Convenience and Necessity (“CPCN”) authorizing the construction of an 8.6-mile-long overhead 

transmission line through valuable agricultural land in Tillamook County.  OFB, TCFB and 

ODFA do not believe that this transmission line is necessary or that it presently can or should 

receive land use approval at the local level.  We urge the PUC not to approve this application.   

 

By way of background, OFB is a voluntary, grassroots, nonprofit organization representing 

Oregon’s farmers and ranchers in the public and policymaking arenas. As Oregon’s largest 

general farm organization, its primary goal is to promote educational improvement, economic 

opportunity, and social advancement for its members and the farming, ranching, and natural 

resources industry. Today, OFB represents over 7,000-member families professionally engaged 

in the industry and has a total membership of over 60,000 Oregon families.  TCFB is the voice of 

agriculture in Tillamook County, representing members across Tillamook County, including 

several who would be impacted by this project.   

 

The ODFA was founded in 1892 to work on behalf of the Oregon dairy farmers. Today, ODFA 

represents Oregon’s 240 dairy farming families. Dairy farms are located in 20 counties and 

approximately 125,000 cows call Oregon “home.” ODFA works to create an atmosphere that is 

conducive for Oregon dairy producers of all sizes and types of production in all areas of the state. 

 

Tillamook PUD has not demonstrated the necessity of this transmission line.  We understand that 

Tillamook PUD first proposed this project in the late 2000s, and they are basing their demand 

projections on growth experienced prior to 2011.  The demand estimates used in the application 

do not account for the recent slowing of demand.  Indeed, data from the Tillamook PUD shows 

that demand has been flat or decreasing since 2011, and has a purchase contract with BPA that 



  2 

estimates future load growth at .25%, not the 1.1% stated in the application. Additionally, the 

Tillamook PUD appears to have increased its loading estimates since it initiated the Citizen’s 

Advisory Group process in 2014, with actual loading somewhere in the 60% range.  Tillamook 

PUD has not adequately explained the discrepancies in its demand estimates and projected need, 

and has not adequately explained why this project is necessary in the face of slowing demand.  

We urge the PUC to closely evaluate the Tillamook PUD’s demand and load projections and the 

need for this project.   

 

Tillamook PUD has also drastically overstated its ability and likelihood to be granted land use 

approval.  While we appreciate Tillamook PUD’s work to engage community members in 

reviewing and commenting on the proposed route for the transmission line, Tillamook PUD has 

not secured approval of most of the farmers whose property and livelihood will be impacted by 

the line nor have they accurately captured the myriad of negative impacts the proposed 

transmission line could have on agricultural operations within its route.   

 

Contrary to what the PUD states in its application, the proposed transmission line is not 

permitted outright.  It may be permitted only after found to be consistent with ORS 

215.275.  This statute involves discretionary review/approval criteria and constitutes a land use 

decision.  We understand that Tillamook PUD has filed an application with the County, but that 

application was incomplete and has not begun to move through the permitting process.   

 

The PUC should not approve the application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and 

Necessity as Tillamook PUD is not guaranteed to secured  its local land use approval.  Utility 

facilities may only be permitted in EFU zones if the utility can meet certain criteria, including 

demonstrating that the route must pass through farm zoned land and minimizing impact on 

agricultural uses.  Tillamook PUD provides only a short paragraph noting that it has located the 

transmission line along edges of fields and property lines as far as possible. This statement does 

not demonstrate land use compatibility.   Tillamook PUD has not addressed farming practices 

along the route, any conflicts with the transmission line, any potential mitigation it will provide 

for the farmers, and a myriad of other issues associated with agricultural compatibility.  

 

Given that the construction and operation of the transmission line will be severely disruptive to 

the agricultural operations along the route, Tillamook PUD has not demonstrated that its 

proposed transmission line will receive land use approval.  Construction of a transmission line 

will preclude impacted farmers from utilizing large portions of their property and require 

significant changes in farming practices during construction. Operation of the line can impact the 

ability to apply nutrients, aerially address pest and weed issues, and utilize drone technology to 

assist their operations.  Additionally, we have had several reports of impacts to cattle from stray 

voltage along Tillamook PUD lines that the utility has not addressed.  Tillamook PUD has not 

demonstrated that its line will be compatible with the impacted agricultural operations, that it can 

mitigate any impacts, or that siting through agricultural lands is necessary.  Until the required 

conditional use permit is approved by Tillamook County, the PUC cannot determine 

compatibility with the applicable Statewide Planning Goals or the Tillamook County 

Comprehensive Plan.  Tillamook PUD is not guaranteed land use approval, and its application 

should not be granted absent such approval. 

 



  3 

The Tillamook PUD also failed to fully consider all alternatives to the proposed transmission 

line.  The Tillamook PUD’s application dismisses both alternatives to the transmission line as 

well as alternative routes because it states that neither meet its needs.    

 

As we discussed above, Tillamook PUD has not demonstrated that a new transmission line is 

necessary or that it can get permit approval for a new transmission line.  Tillamook PUD should 

be required to more fully evaluate and consider upgrading existing facilities instead of 

dismissing those options as not meeting its needs.   

 

Additionally, even if they can demonstrate need, Tillamook PUD has not fully evaluated 

alternative routes for a transmission line.  Tillamook PUD states that the “alternative routes are 

reasonable,” but not preferable.  They mention costs as a consideration.  Cost alone may not be a 

basis for failing to choose alternative routes under the applicable land use standards.   See ORS 

215.275(3)(“cost alone shall not be the only consideration in determine that a utility facility is 

necessary… [and] land costs shall not be included considering alternative locations…”).   

 

In this case, Tillamook PUD’s proposed transmission line route is the most cost effective largely 

because Tillamook PUD assumes that it will be able to acquire easements on agricultural land at 

sub-market rates, either through purchase or condemnation.  Tillamook PUD must include 

reasonable cost estimates in evaluating the cost of acquisition and should not be permitted to 

base its estimates on sub-market rates for agricultural land.  If Tillamook PUD correctly 

estimates the costs associated with siting on agricultural land, the cost relative to other routes 

will become more realistic.  At any rate, Tillamook PUD must fully evaluate alternative routes, 

even those where easement acquisition may cost them more. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on Tillamook PUD’s Application for a 

Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity.  If you have any questions, please do not 

hesitate to contact Mary Anne Cooper at maryanne@oregonfb.org or Tami Kerr at 

Tami.kerr@oregondairyfarmers.org. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

  

 

Mary Anne Cooper 

Public Policy Counsel 

Oregon Farm Bureau Federation 

 

Tami Kerr 

Executive Director 

Oregon Dairy Farmers Association 

 

mailto:maryanne@oregonfb.org


PAGE 1 – PETITION TO INTERVENE OF OFB 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

 

OF OREGON 
 

PCN 2 

 

 

In the Matter of 

 

TILLAMOOK PEOPLE’S UTILITY 

DISTRICT, 

 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC 

CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 

 

 

PETITION TO INTERVENE OF 

OREGON FARM BUREAU 

 

Pursuant to ORS 756.525 and OAR 860-001-0300(2), the Oregon Farm Bureau 

Federation (“OFB”) hereby petitions the Oregon Public Utility Commission (“Commission”) to 

intervene in this proceeding with full party status as described in OAR 860-001-0010(7). In 

support of this petition, OFB provides the following: 

1. The contact information for OFB is: 

Oregon Farm Bureau Federation 

1320 Capitol St. NE 

Suite 200 

Salem, OR 97301 

Telephone: (503) 399-1701 

Fax: (503) 399-8082 

 

2. The contact information for OFB’s counsel to be included on the service list is: 

Mary Anne Cooper 

Public Policy Counsel 

Oregon Farm Bureau Federation 

1320 Capitol St. NE, Suite 200 

Salem, OR 97301 

Telephone: (503) 399-1701 Ext. 306 

E-Mail: Maryanne@oregonfb.org 

 

3.  OFB is a voluntary, grassroots, nonprofit organization representing Oregon’s farmers 

and ranchers in the public and policymaking arenas. As Oregon’s largest general farm 



PAGE 2 – PETITION TO INTERVENE OF OFB 

organization, its primary goal is to promote educational improvement, economic 

opportunity, and social advancement for its members and the farming, ranching, and 

natural resources industry. Today, OFB represents over 7,000-member families 

professionally engaged in the industry and has a total membership of over 60,000 

Oregon families. 

4. OFB has a direct and substantial interest in these proceedings as OFB has 177 

members in Tillamook County, several of whom will be directly impacted by 

Tillamook People’s Utility District’s authorization of the construction of an 8.6-mile-

long overhead transmission line through valuable agricultural land in Tillamook 

County. 

5. OFB intends to address whether the proposed transmission line is necessary and 

whether it can or should receive land use approval at the local level, as outlined in 

our comments on the line dated November 14, 2017. 

6. Through its representation of Oregon’s family farmers and ranchers, OFB has 

acquired extensive expertise in virtually every aspect of public policy that touches 

agriculture, including agricultural land use policy. 

/// 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PAGE 3 – PETITION TO INTERVENE OF OFB 

Based on the information provided herein in accordance with the Commission’s rules of 

procedure, OFB respectfully requests to intervene as a party in this proceeding, with all rights 

appropriate to that status. OFB’s participation in this proceeding will not unreasonably broaden 

the issues, burden the record, or unreasonably delay the proceeding. 

DATED this 5th day of December, 2017. 

        Respectfully submitted, 

         

             

        Mary Anne Cooper, OSB #104586 

        Public Policy Counsel 

        Oregon Farm Bureau Federation 

      1320 Capitol St. NE, Suite 200 

Salem, OR 97301 

Telephone: (503) 399-1701 Ext. 306 

E-Mail: Maryanne@oregonfb.org 

 



































Nick R. Blanc 
nblanc@blancfirm.com 
*Licensed in OR & CA 

--- ~e,---

David M. Blanc 
dblanc@blancfmn.com 
*Licensed in OR & WA 

BLANCFIRM 
-----LLC-·----

VIA ELECTRONIC FILING 

Oregon Public Utility Commission 
Attn: Filing Center 
P.O. Box 1088 
Salem, OR 97308-1088 

June 8, 2020 

Re: In the Matter of Umatilla Electric Cooperation 
Case No. PCN 4 
Our File No. 020-054 

To Whom It May Concern: 

39 SE Court Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 

Phone: (541) 215-4810 
Fax: (541) 215-6609 
www.blancfirm.com 

Enclosed for filing in the above-referenced matter is Gary and Casey Frederickson's 
Petition to Intervene. 

Your attention to this matter is appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

7k~ 
Nick R. Blanc 

Encl. 
cc. w/ encl. Gary and Casey Frederickson 



In the Matter of 

BEFORE THE UTILITY COMMISSION 

OF OREGON 

PCN4 

UMATILLA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, 

GARY AND CASEY FREDERICKSON' S 
PETITION TO INTERVENE 

Petition for Certification of Public Convenience 
and Necessity. 

Gary and Casey Frederickson (the "Fredericksons") respectfully petition to intervene in 

this proceeding pursuant to OAR 860-001-0300 and ORS 756.525. In support ofthis petition, the 

Fredericksons provide the following information: 

(a) Gary and Casey Frederickson 
79206 Rippee Rd. 
Boardman, OR 97818 

(b) The name and address of the person to be included on the official service list in this 

proceeding is: 

Nick R. Blanc 
Attorney at Law 
39 S.E. Court Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
Telephone: (541) 215-4810 
Fax: (541) 215-6609 
Email: nblanc(a),blancfirm.com 

(c) The Fredericksons are individuals residing in Morrow County, Oregon. The 

Frederickson' s property neighbors those properties where Umatilla Electric Cooperative ("UEC") 

Case No. PCN 4 
Page 1 of2 
PETITION TO INTERVENE 

-,,,,,....--_ .@,-.---

BLANC FIRM 
- - · L i l."- -·-

39 SE Court Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 

(541) 215-4810 



is seeking to put its power lines, and the roadway that UEC proposes to use as part of the route of 

its proposed transmission line is directly adjacent to the Frederickson's property. 

( d) The Fredericksons have a direct and substantial interest in the issues raised in this 

proceeding and have submitted public comment in the matter. 

( e) The F redericksons intend to monitor the proceeding and, if necessary, raise issues 

and submit further testimony appropriate to the proceedings. No other party could adequately 

represent the interest of the Fredericksons. 

(f) Based on the information provided above in compliance with the Commission's 

rules and procedures, the Fredericksons request approval to participate in these proceedings as an 

intervenor. The Frederickson's participation in this matter will not unreasonably burden the issues 

or the record, or unreasonably delay the proceeding. 

The Fredericksons therefore respectfully request that the commission grant this petition to 

intervene. 

DATED this 8th day of June, 2020. 

Case No. PCN 4 
Page 2 of2 
PETITION TO INTERVENE 

THE BLANC FIRM, LLC 
Attorneys for Gary and Casey Frederickson 

Isl Nick R. Blanc 
NickR. Blanc, OSB No. 150818 
3 9 SE Court Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 
Phone: (541) 215-4810; Fax (541) 215-6609 
Email: nblanc@blancfirm.com 

. . /c;?,?'e . . -

BLANC FIRM 
-·--- -- LIL __ ·- -

39 SE Court Ave. 
Pendleton, OR 97801 

(541) 215-4810 


	1 Agenda
	2 Minutes - April 8
	3 LPSCC Coordinator Contract
	4 Vector Control District Update
	5 Appointment Request - Vector Control District Board
	6 Discussion - Umatilla PD Request
	7 Discussion - PUC Petition to Intervene
	8 Budget Resolution R-2020-11
	9 Community Development Dept. Report
	10 Planning Dept. Report
	11 Correspondence

	Item: 
	Staff Contact Name: Justin Nelson
	Phone Number Ext: 5626
	Department Name: County Counsel
	Agenda Date: 6/10/2020
	Short Title: Public Utility Commission- Discussion regarding Petition to Intervene
	Order or Resolution: Off
	OrdinancePublic Hearing: Off
	1st Reading: Off
	2nd Reading: Off
	Public Comment Anticipated: Off
	Est Time: 
	Document Recording Required: Off
	ContractAgreement: Off
	Appointments: Off
	Update on ProjectCommittee: Off
	Discussion Only: Off
	Discussion  Action: Off
	Est Time 2: 
	Department Report: Off
	Other: On
	Item Other: 
	NA: Off
	Contractor: 
	Contractor Address: 
	Effective From: 
	Effect Through: 
	Total Contract Amount: 
	Budget Line: 
	If Yes Attach Purchase PreAuthorization Request if Applicable: Yes
	Reviewed By: 
	DATE:   Darrell Green                   6-8-20                             
	DATE_2: 
	DATE_3: 
	DATE_4: 
	Issues, Background: BACKGROUND:  On March 19, 2020, Umatilla Electric Cooperative (“UEC”) filed a Petition for Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to allow construction of an overhead transmission line which will require a condemnation of land or an interest therein. The Transmission Line will run approximately four and three tenths (4.3) miles west from the Highway 730 Switchyard and terminate at UEC's planned Olson Road Substation (location of new data center being constructed).  UEC states that the transmission line (and possible requirement for condemnation) is necessary to allow the company to continue to provide adequate line capacity and reliability to existing and new loads in the Boardman and Port of Morrow Areas. Morrow County submitted a written comment to the project (attached).  The question- Should/Can the County petition to intervene in the process- i.e., become a party.  
	Fiscal Impact: Unknown at this time-  staff time and resources
	MOTION: Will be discussed at meeting.


